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Grand Millennium Plaza
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Hong Kong
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Fax: (852) 2532 5229
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CHINA OFFICES

Beijing Representation Office
Suite 1011, Tower W1, Oriental Plaza
1 East Chang An Avenue

Dong Cheng District, Beijing

Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board of directors (the “Board”) are pleased to present the
annual results of REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”), its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Lottery Business

During the year under review, the Group’s lottery business primarily
comprised System and Games Development Business (“SGDB") and
Distribution and Marketing Business (“DMB").

Turnover of the lottery business for the year increased substantially
by 208% to HK$1,150,514,000 (2007: HK$373,410,000), accounting
for 98% of the total turnover. Profit before taxation arising from this
segment recorded a significant growth of 74% to HK$424,407,000
(2007: HK$243,380,000).

China Lottery Market
The China Lottery market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery.

Total Lottery sales in China amounted to RMB106 billion in 2008
(2007: RMB100 billion), up 6% year-on-year. During the year, sales of
the China Lottery market registered an increase of 20% year-on-year
ex-Video Lottery Terminals (“VLT")/Keno sales, whose sales dropped
due to the implementation of the Chinese Government’s new policies
in early 2008.

China’s total Welfare Lottery sales was approximately RMB60.4
billion, accounting for 57% of the total lottery sales in China.
Welfare Computer Ticket Games (“CTG") was 84% (RMB51 billion),
Welfare Scratch Cards was 13% (RMB8 billion) and VLT/Keno took
3% (RMB2 billion). In 2008, China’s total Sports Lottery sales was
approximately RMB45.6 billion, accounting for 43% of the total
lottery sales in China. Sports CTG was 77% (RMB35.3 billion) and
Sports Scratch Cards took 23% (RMB10.3 billion). The Group’s lottery
business covers both the Welfare and Sports Lotteries, except VLT/
Keno.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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China Welfare Lottery Sales in 2008
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System and Games Development Business

The Group’s SGDB covers both CTG and Scratch Cards and the Group
is providing such services to both the Welfare Lottery and Sports
Lottery.

Welfare CTG Business

Our Group's Welfare CTG business is principally conducted through
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”), a 84.75%-
owned subsidiary of our Group. Sinodata is the leading equipment
supplier for the Welfare CTG market in China. It provides service to
16 provinces in China. Our Welfare CTG business under Sinodata
continued to perform on track with stable growth. The Welfare CTG
market had recovered from the slow-down due to the snowstorms
and the earthquakes in the first half of 2008. For the year, Welfare
CTG registered a healthy growth of approximately 10% when
compared to 2007. The Group has successfully maintained its leading
market share of over 50% in China.

Welfare Instant Lottery Business

Our Group's Welfare Instant Lottery tickets validation business is
conducted through our 50%-owned Beijing Guard Libang Technology
Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”), which is the exclusive system and
equipment supplier of Welfare Scratch Cards validation and system
implementation in China. Guard Libang is a 50:50 joint venture with
Scientific Games Corporation, the world’s leading instant lottery
system and validation company. The Group’s Welfare Scratch Cards
network covered the entire Mainland China by the end of 2008
(2007: 22 provinces).

China Welfare Lottery Sales in 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In 2008, Welfare Scratch Cards sales in China increased by 166%
year-on-year. Given its popularity and enormous potential, Welfare
Scratch Cards sales is expected to continue to see a strong growth in
China. The Group was actively involved in this segment of business
by providing system, games and validation of instant lottery tickets
through its proprietary security and validation system using 2D
barcode.

Capitalising on the Group’s leading position in the China Welfare
Lottery market and especially, its exclusive Instant Lottery Tickets
validation business, our Group has successfully participated in the
China Welfare Scratch Cards printing business since November 2008.

The Group's printing operation with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing
House (AREMRBENR) is set up under a cooperation contract for
a period of 15 years. The Group's printing facilities is located at
Shijiazhuang, the Provincial Capital of Hebei Province. Shijiazhuang
Offset Printing House is the first printer for Welfare Lottery in China
since the inception of the Lottery in the 1980s and is one of the three
entities authorized to print for the Welfare Scratch Cards programme.
Through the cooperation, the Group will be contributing to the
Disaster Relief Lottery for the rehabilitation of Wenchuan County,
Sichuan Province after the earthquakes.

At present, the existing printing facilities have a printing capacity
of around 1 billion standard tickets per annum and our Group is in
the process of upgrading and increasing the capacity of the plant by
bringing in additional advanced printing press into China. Once the
upgrading of the plant is completed the total capacity of the plant
is expected to increase to around 4 billion tickets per annum. We
expect to complete the upgrade in 2009.

Sports CTG Business

The Group's Sports CTG business involved the development and
production of CTG machines and related consultancy services to
the Provincial Sports Lottery Centers across China. Up to the end of
2008, our Group had manufactured and sold Sports CTG machines
and provided services to 14 provinces in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Distribution and Marketing Business

Establishing a professional and productive distribution channel is
paramount to the continuing development and growth of the China
Lottery market. It has always been one of the key objectives of
our Group to help contribute in the development of a systematic
distribution channel in China.

Our Group's DMB business was commenced in late 2008 and since
then our Group has focused on the cooperative model for the
distribution of lottery tickets as oppose to the direct sales model.
Under the cooperative model, we focus on working with entities
and organizations that already have had a widely diversified and
recognized retail network. The Group is proud to have China Post,
PetroChina, Sinopec, China Resources, other major supermarket and
convenient store chains as our distribution channel partners for the
distribution of lottery tickets in China. These cooperations bring to
bear the fusion of professional lottery management and experience
and access to the extensive distribution network spanning across
China at prime locations with high traffic and minimum ongoing
operating cost. In this way, we expect these channels can help create
more sales for the lottery products in particular, scratch cards as such
sales are normally the result of impulse buying.

Even though the DMB business segment for our Group was only
commenced in September 2008, we have successfully rolled out
over 18,000 Point-of-Sales (“POS"”) by the end of 2008, against
our original target of 15,000 POS. Furthermore, during the period
after the commencement of our DMB business we have secured
cooperative service agreements with 18 provinces in China. In this
way, we have successfully achieved critical mass both in terms of the
number of POS and the penetration into various major established
distribution channels in China. We have achieved such results in less
than a year of operation.

Initially, we started with the distribution of Sports Instant Lottery
tickets. In 2009, we do plan to extend the range of lottery product
offers to the public by first including Welfare Instant Lottery products
at our POS. We intend to distribute a wide range of lottery products
like Welfare CTG subsequently. We plan to sign up more distribution
channels and we maintain our plan to roll out a total of over 40,000
additional POS by the end of 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook of our Lottery Business

We believe that lottery sales is an effective way to raise funds to
help the increasing number of people in need. China’s total lottery
sales in the third and fourth quarters of 2008 and the first quarter
of 2009 have all shown a substantial and continuing growth trend
notwithstanding the financial tsunami which struck the world in the
latter half of 2008. This re-demonstrates the resilient nature of lottery
industry in China.

As a major participant in the industry, the Group is confident that
both the Welfare and Sports Lotteries in China will continue to
make significant contributions for the good causes which benefit the
general public in China. The Group will also continue its efforts in
the furthering of such good causes in China through the careful and
diligent execution of its planned strategies.

System and Games Development Business

Looking ahead, we expect Welfare CTG to maintain a healthy growth
momentum. In addition, we believe that Scratch Cards will continue
to be a strong growth driver for lottery sales in China. The increase
in price points of scratch cards and the launching of theme based
instant lottery tickets tied to the key events in China and lotteries
dedicated to specific good causes will continue to be another key
impetus to the growth of scratch cards sales in China. Such key
events may include themes like the 60th Founding Anniversary of
China and the 2010 World Expo in Shanghai.

Our strategic partnership with Scientific Games Corporation will be
instrumental in enabling us to bring its expertise and technology
know-how to the booming Scratch Cards market in China.

Our entry to the printing business for the Welfare Lottery in China
is a landmark step towards the development of the Group as the
leading integrated lottery service provider for China. Welfare Scratch
Cards printing has great synergies to our current two business lines
— SGDB as well as DMB - as the Group can benefit from both the
increasing sales of new games developed by us and our extensive
network of distribution channels. The Group believes that the
printing business segment will form an important part of its overall
strategy in the China Lottery market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Distribution and Marketing Business

DMB remains as one of our prime focuses. Our strategy in DMB is
to focus on channel sales development which we believe is where
the growth will be in the future. The key to the success of such
strategy is to develop close ties and partnerships with leading
distribution channels in China. 2009 will likely be a year where our
Group continues to excel in the DMB business and be able to attract
additional channel partners to further fortify our leading position.

The distribution network has great synergies to our SGDB as the
Group can benefit from both increasing the sales of new games
developed by it and its game and system development capabilities
can serve as our key competitive edge in winning channel partners in
that the Group can develop new games to fit their channels.

The Group’s plan for DMB will be funded by our internal resources.
Given the healthy on-going operating cashflow generated from our
business and a practically ungeared balance sheet, we believe that
we have adequate working capital to complete the roll out.

Financial Business

In 2008, worldwide equity markets slid as the global financial
turmoil exerted adverse impact on broader economy. In the second
half of 2008, undermined by the turmoil, worries over an economic
slowdown intensified. Global and local markets suffered from
worsening economic outlook and investor sentiment. As at the end
of 2008, major equity markets had tumbled between 31.3% to 66%
from their end-2007 levels. In Hong Kong, the HSI tumbled 48.3%,
posting the biggest drop since 1974. Average daily turnover during
December 2008 was HK$43.1 billion, 63.9% lower than HK$119.5
billion in January 2008. Due to the unfavourable economic and
investment environment, turnover of the Group's financial services
decreased by 63% to HK$11,093,000 (2007: HK$29,770,000)
and recorded segment loss of HK$42,396,000 for the year (2007
(restated): profit of HK$795,000).

During the year, the Group has adopted conservative strategy for
its investment trading and holding business due to volatility in local
stock market and was not engaged in trading of high risk derivative
financial instruments such as equity or currency accumulators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Interest income from money lending business for the year increased
by 20% to HK$11,393,000 (2007: HK$9,481,000). We have reviewed
and taken actions to restructure the debt portfolio which resulted to
a provision and written off of debts amounted to HK$45,189,000.
The money lending business recorded a loss of HK$31,330,000
(2007: profit of HK$11,864,000). The Group will continue to adopt
conservative financing policy on the loan lending and to take active
measures to control the risk exposure.

In 2008, the Group has been taken every cautious in dealing with
our investment holdings and minimizing effect on financial services
caused by the financial tsunami. Although various stimulus plans and
rescue measures have been announced by governments worldwide, it
remains uncertain how soon the economy will recover and financial
markets are likely to remain volatile. The Group has taken active
measures to reduce its risk exposure to the financial market and scale
down the operations of our financial services business in order to
reduce our exposures to the weakening global financial environment
and to further strengthen the Company’s financial position. In light
of the severe challenges that the financial business faced in 2008,
we intend to dispose of the Group’s non-core business which would
enable the Group to reduce its risk to the financial market and
redirect the resources so released to the lottery business which is
much less correlated to the current economic cycle and financial
turmoil.

Prospect

During the year under review, the Group's Lottery Business continued
to excel and make substantial progress in territorial coverage, games
categories offered and revenue generation.

We are optimistic on our business outlook of 2009. In addition
to SGDB and DMB, we will proactively explore new opportunities
in lottery related areas as well as support and participate in new
initiatives in the market, with an aim to create new revenue streams
and enhance profitability.

Of course, it goes without saying that the Group would not have
been anywhere close to where we are now without the support and
guidance of our business partners and our loyal shareholders. We
believe that dividend payment is part of our ongoing commitment
to enhancing shareholder value. As a goal, we intend to start paying
dividend in 2009, but this could vary depending upon the outlook
for earnings growth, capital expenditure requirements, cashflow from
operations as well as potential acquisition opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEN®EDN(E)

Given the robust market growth and the resilient nature of lottery
industry in China, we are confident that our business will continue
to excel and we will maintain our position as the leading integrated
lottery service provider for China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$1,173,000,000 (2007 (restated): HK$412,661,000),
representing an increase of 184% over that of the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's lottery business
in China which achieved a turnover of HK$1,150,514,000 (2007:
HK$373,410,000).

Profit attributable to equity holders for the year was
HK$267,641,000 (2007: HK$136,688,000). The earnings per share
was 3.68 cents (2007: 2.19 cents). Fully diluted earnings per share
was 3.66 cents (2007: 2.17 cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2008, the Group’'s total equity amounted to
HK$3,060,555,000 as compared to HK$2,441,403,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had cash reserves of approximately
HK$244,043,000 (2007: HK$689,342,000), which included
approximately HK$18,419,000 (2007: HK$31,539,000) of clients’
funds that were kept in designated segregated bank accounts.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2008 was 0.46% (2007:
0.58%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the aggregate of
bank borrowings by the amount of shareholders’ equity. The liquidity
ratio of the Group, represented by a ratio between current assets
over current liabilities, was 633% (2007: 1,192%).

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2008 of HK$14,158,000 (2007: HK$14,056,000). The bank
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars
and interest bearing at prevailing commercial lending rates. The
Group’s land and building and listed investments belonging to clients
were pledged to secure these bank borrowings. We expect that all
these borrowings will be repaid by internal generated funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
requirements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s land and building, which
were classified as investment properties in 2007, and listed
investment belonging to clients, with total market value of
approximately HK$47,727,000 and HK$2,857,000 respectively (2007:
HK$49,034,000 and nil respectively) were pledged to banks to secure
the bank borrowings granted to the Group.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company issued 254,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.4173 per share pursuant to a
conditional share sale and purchase agreement dated 31 December
2007. Details of the transaction are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 5 June 2008.

20,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted
during the year upon exercise of share options granted by the
Company.

15,825,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were repurchased by the
Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company’s
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The Group
did not enter into any foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against exchange rates fluctuations. Foreign exchange risk arising
from the normal course of operations is considered to be minimal
and the management will closely monitor the fluctuation in the
currency and take appropriate actions when condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have

any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group
and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENW®EDN(E)

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries

On 13 April 2008, Huge Top Enterprises Inc. (“Huge Top”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share
transfer agreement with EMNTRBE S HIMTH R 2 F)(translated
as Guangzhou Caitong Information Technology Co. Ltd.), /&Y
ERMKE(S B AR A (translated as Shenzhen Huahe Guangdian
Information Co. Ltd.), ZX(Jiang Libin) and RE#(Wu Yuxiong)
under which Huge Top has agreed to acquire 90% of the registered
capital in EMTEESIHEHRBR A f(translated as Guangzhou Latech
Technology Co Ltd) (“Guangzhou Latech”) at the consideration of
RMB80,600,000. Guangzhou Latech is involved in the development
and production of Sports Lottery machines, related operation
software system and networks (including the provision of incidental
consultancy services) for the Sports Lottery industry in China. Details
of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular dated 14 May
2008. The Group has taken over management of Guangzhou Latech
in May 2008 pursuant to the said share transfer agreement.

On 24 December 2007, Huge Top entered into a share purchase
agreement with, among others, Giga Step Limited ("Giga Step”)
under which Huge Top has agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Jertford Development Ltd (“Jertford”) and the shareholder’s
loan due from Jertford to Giga Step. Jertford shall upon completion
be indirectly interested in 26% of the registered capital of Shenzhen
Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd (“Kingsail”). The consideration payable
for the acquisition was HK$75,000,000 which was to be settled
in cash. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2007. The transaction has been
completed in April 2008. Upon completion of this acquisition, the
Group, together with its then existing interests in Kingsail, holds
84% in the registered capital of Kingsail indirectly.

On 31 December 2007, Multi Glory Limited (“Multi Glory”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase
agreement with, among others, Billion Invest Limited (“Billion
Invest”) under which Multi Glory has agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Top Manage Group Limited (“Top Manage")
and the shareholder’s loan due from Top Manage to Billion Invest.
Top Manage was indirectly interested in 20% of the registered
capital of Sinodata. The consideration payable for the acquisition was
HK$600,000,000, which was to be satisfied as to HK$240,000,000
by payment in cash and as to HK$360,000,000 by the issue of
254,000,000 ordinary shares by the Company to Billion Invest (or its
nominee) at a price of approximately HK$1.4173 per share. Details
of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular dated 5
June 2008. The transaction has been completed in June 2008. Upon
completion of this acquisition, the Group, together with its then
existing interests in Sinodata, holds 84.75% in the registered capital
of Sinodata indirectly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Apart from the above, the Group had no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 1,221 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual’s
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

The Group will continue to emphasise on staff training and total
quality management to better prepare its staff for the upcoming
changes and challenges in the market and industry.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to
all our shareholders, business partners and professional advisors for
their support throughout the year, and to our management and staff
for their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERNEREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 4 July 2002. Mr Chan is responsible
for the strategic development and overall operations of the Group.
He holds a LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant.
He has over 24 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree of arts from
the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company,
he has been the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an
international manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 49, obtained a master in business
administration from the University of Bath in England in 1988. Mr
Yuen is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
& Administrators. Mr Yuen has more than 25 years of experience
in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were working in
multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a firm of
certified public accountants and an independent non-executive
director of Nam Fong International Holdings Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 53, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
Mr Chow graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1981 with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an
honors degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in England
in 1987. Mr Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of Hong Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice since then.
Currently, Mr Chow is a Partner of Arculli Fong & Ng, Solicitors. Mr
Chow also serves as an independent non-executive director of CCT
Tech International Limited and an non-executive director of Premium
Land Limited, both are listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr Chow
also served as an independent non-executive director of China Solar
Energy Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong from 5
October 1998 to 23 September 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EER

LEE Ka Lun, aged 54, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in UK and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Lee has over 25
years experience in banking and auditing. He had been the Deputy
Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience on corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments
and general management. Mr Lee also serves as an independent
non-executive director of three other listed companies in Hong
Kong namely Denway Motors Limited, Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited and Guangzhou Investment Company Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HUNG Hing Wai, aged 53, is a director of REXCAPITAL Securities
Limited and is responsible for supervising the dealing activities and
certain approval functions like credit approval of the Group. Mr Hung
has about 27 years of experience in the industry.

WOO Ming Wah, aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Woo has over 12 years
of experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 39, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 16 years of experience in the
field of company secretaryship.

FUNG Chun Wah, aged 43, is the Director — Corporate Development
& Investor Relations of the Group. Mr Fung has over 20 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and corporate affairs.
Prior to joining the Group, he had worked for a Hong Kong-listed
blue chip conglomerate and a number of multinational consultancy
firms.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH

REEBEAEBE(E)

FHRB SR RRERTARSHAMATERS
ERERGHMAEEE - FRERERTREFR
ARG EBB25F - WEHERRTRITEENT EJﬁ
mErSNREP RS EERBBI5F A8
DERT MART FH LE - éaﬂﬂ&%)ﬁ
LRERER FRENM/ZI=ZREBE LD RAIK
BOTEBRAR  BELESERBRBEBRABLBES
BREARABZBUIFNITES -

E

SREEAR

HER S35 AUERBHFERARZES  BF
EBAEEZEETHRETERIEWINEE
E]#) c FLEEETRERBR27FLE -

HEAE 385 RAKEZERMBMAE - L
REBGIMAGREXEETMHELEE -
EREEERAMBERTEERRI12FLR -

KPLE - 3958
HHFWELE

ARBZRNBIWE - REZLRER
B8 - RRARWETEERRI6F

BIRE - 4358 RAKEZCEERMIREEBIE
MEE - BEENKREEREMEEREHAETE
BEB0FER - WMALEER  WERER—
FREBELTZEBCENZMBERBARRE AR

17



18

Management for Lottery Business
YPEXZBEEAE

ZHANG Jing, aged 54, is the President & Chief Operating Officer
(Lottery Operation) and the Chief Representative (Beijing Office).
Mr Zhang graduated from Yunnan University and has over 30 years
experience in governmental affairs and corporate management. He
has been involved in the modernization of lottery in China since
2003 and later involved in the development of lottery business of the
Group.

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 39, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets). Mr Zhang graduated from the
Peking University with a bachelor degree of arts. He has over 15 years
experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 47, is the general manager of Beijing Guard
Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”). Mr Wang graduated
from the Hunan University with a master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Guard Libang, he was appointed as
vice president of China Southern Airlines Power Machinery Company
in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He specialized in large scale
operation management and international venture, especially in
nationwide marketing management. He was the general manager of
Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China between 2000 to
2003. Mr Wang joined Guard Libang since 2004.

ZHAO Xuejun, aged 43, was appointed as a director and general
manager of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”)
and is responsible for the overall operational management of
Sinodata. Mr Zhao holds a M.Sc. and a Ph.D degree of photoelectric
equipment and mechanical engineering from Chongging University.
He joined Sinodata in 1998 and has been engaged in the research
and development and project management work on lottery system
solutions, and equipment as well as lottery games for long time.
He has led the planning and implementation of issuance and
administration system of Computer Ticket Games in welfare lottery
for 16 provinces in China and has extensive experience in lottery
development strategy, technology R&D and corporate management.

XU Siping, aged 50, is the deputy chairman and consultant of
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd. Mr Xu graduated from
Dalian University of Technology. He has years of extensive experience
in lottery industry in China, including State development policy,
corporate operating strategy, market operation and management of
investment assets.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

PAN Baochang, aged 59, the consultant and chief scientist of
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd. Mr Pan holds a Ph.D
of photoelectric equipment and mechanical engineering from
Chongqging University. Mr Pan has great achievement and
contributions in the research and product development of computer
image processing and intelligence identification technology, auto
reading system, lottery issuance and administration system.

ZHU Yi, aged 41, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd is in charge of the marketing functions.
He graduated from Chonggqing University with a bachelor degree of
Electrical Engineering. Since 1993, Mr Zhu has been working in the
lottery industry of China. He has long been engaged in the research
and development of the lottery market, and is responsible for the
sales and marketing of the Computer Ticket Games project of more
than ten provinces in China. He has extensive experience and has
outstanding achievements in anticipating the development trend of
the lottery industry, capturing marketing opportunities and market
operation.

LI Xue Jun, aged 36, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, and is in charge of technical matters.
He graduated from Chongging University in the department of
photoelectric equipment and mechanical engineering with a
master degree in Engineering. Mr Li has been responsible for the
planning and development of the lottery issue and management
system. He has completed the implementation of the technological
solutions and engineering tasks of the Computer Ticket Games
issue and management system in 16 provinces in China, with
which he was awarded the prize of “Excellent New Product” of
the Guangdong Province and a number of national patents. With
extensive experience in the planning of total lottery solutions and
the development and implementation of relevant products, he has
exceptional insights into and practical experience of the application
of relevant lottery technologies and their development prospects.

JIANG Libin, aged 36, is the general manager of Guangzhou
Latech Technology Co Ltd (“Guangzhou Latech”). Mr Jiang joined
Guangzhou Latech since 2000 and has extensive experience in
mechanical and electronic engineering research and related business
operations. He graduated from the faculty of power control in Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

n

XEBKEBEAB(HE)

QIAO lJin, aged 40, is the general manager of Shenzhen Kingsail
Software Tech Co Ltd. Mr Qiao graduated from Chongging
University and holds a M.Sc. degree from the Department of
Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from the School of
Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of experience in
the field of information technology and engineering, specializing in
comprehensive information system application.

LV Liangming, aged 40, is the general manager of Beijing Lohowin
Marketing Co Ltd. Mr Lv graduated from the Department of
Sociology of Peking University with a master degree in law. He
has over 20 years of experience in market research and marketing,
including 7 years of experience in lottery research and practice. He
has extensive theoretical and practical experiences in the areas of
marketing research, marketing management as well as lottery.

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 45, the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing
Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the
overall management of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Tsang
holds a master degree in Business Administration from Massey
University in New Zealand. Mr Tsang has worked in C & C Security
Printing Company Limited for around 20 years and was experienced
in security printing. He was formerly the general manager of Hong
Kong and Dongguan plants of RR Donnelley & Sons Printing Limited.

ZHONG Wou, aged 46, is the Chief Operating Officer of Beijing Xinan
Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
operation of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Zhong graduated
from Beijing University of Aeronautics & Astronautics — School of
Economics and Management, with a master degree of business
administration. He has over 10 years of experience in product
development and logistic management and business planning.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles
and transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company. The Company has complied with the Code throughout
the accounting period covered by this report except in certain
circumstances which are provided and discussed in the latter part of
this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors,
with two Executive Directors namely Mr Chan How Chung, Victor
and Mr Boo Chun Lon and three Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr Lee Ka
Lun. The biographic details of the Directors are set out on pages 16
to 17.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company confirmed with all Independent Non-
executive Directors as to their independence with reference to the
factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulating of the
Group's overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, preparing and approving financial
statements, recommendation of the Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policy and financial matters.
The Board also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to
the management for the day-to-day operation and administration
functions of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
tEXERBME(E)

There were four board meetings held for the year ended 31
December 2008. The following was an attendance record of the
board meetings held by the Board during the year:

Executive Directors HITEE

Chan How Chung, Victor BRZ 2

Boo Chun Lon AR % B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Yuen Wai Ho b & =

Chow Siu Ngor 2;M/NE

Lee Ka Lun FRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive Officer. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities
of a Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer are currently held
by separate individuals with written guidelines for the division of
responsibilities with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of a
Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive Officer if candidates
with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005. It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu
Ngor (as Chairman) and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. To make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

2. To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management;

3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

4. To review and approve the compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office;

5. To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors; and

6. To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

There was one meeting held for the year ended 31 December
2008. The following was an attendance record of the remuneration
committee meeting held by the Remuneration Committee during the
year:

Remuneration Committee Members FWZE S A
Yuen Wai Ho B A& 5
Chow Siu Ngor ;N E
Lee Ka Lun TR

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2008 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tXEREE(HE)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr Chow Siu
Ngor and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. To review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group; and

2. To review the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2008. The following was an attendance record of the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Audit Committee Members FERZEEMKE
Yuen Wai Ho A& %
Chow Siu Ngor ;N E
Lee Ka Lun TR B

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit
fees payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The
Audit Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on
their audit strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal
control of the Company.

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), as the
Group's external auditor for 2009 and that the resolution shall be put
forth for the shareholders of the Company to consider and approve
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), for statutory audit and other services were approximately
HK$1,500,000 and HK$350,000 respectively. The non-statutory audit
services mainly consist of preparation of accountants’ report for the
acquisition of Top Manage Group Limited by the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not formed Nomination Committee. According
to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), the Company may
from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board also has the power to appoint any person to
be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
and such appointment shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company has
adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year, in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except that Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Currently the Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting as specified in the
Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting polices which are pertinent to its
operations and relevant to the financial statements, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared
the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditors to the shareholders are set out on page 37.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation
compliance and risk management.
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rectors’ Report

Di
EETERS

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are principally engaged in
(i) lottery business including system and games development business
and distribution and marketing business; (ii) the provision of financial
services including securities broking, margin financing and investment
trading and holding; and (iii) money lending business.

JOINT VENTURE AND SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s joint venture and principal subsidiaries
are set out in notes 21 and 48 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 39 to 139.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out on page 42.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008,
approximately 31% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 11%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 54% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted

the Group made

to approximately 24%.

None of the Directors, or any of their associates or any other
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As announced by the Company on 22 December 2008, the
Board proposed that the name of the Company be changed from
“REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited” to “REXLot Holdings
Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name “#HZhFIERA
R2&]" as secondary name of the Company to replace the Chinese
name “HZR&EIERAR A 7" (which was adopted for identification
purpose only) (the “Change of Company Name”). The special
resolution relating to the Change of Company Name was duly passed
by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
held on 30 January 2009. Upon the approval by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda on the Change of Company Name having
been obtained, the Change of Company Name has become effective
on 30 January 2009. The stock short names for trading in the shares
of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) have been changed from “REX FINANCIAL H” to
“REXLOT HOLDINGS” in English and from “#Z&& 8" to "#HZEH ¥
PERZ" in Chinese with effect from 9 March 2009.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr Boo Chun Lon
and Mr Lee Ka Lun shall respectively retire and are eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Boo
Chun Lon and Mr Lee Ka Lun offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETEHSE(H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the Directors’ interests in contracts are set out in note 41
to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”)

in the Company

Number of Shares

R4 & E

Name of Director

EEnS

Type of interest
FE 25 3 5l

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

EEfEanER
EEMEANREZFBERAMBRRMEL -

BEXRBEN  AAT - HERAF  EAEE
B4 B 2 ]t EL (AT B 2 B 7 R AR B s AR R AT
AER eSS EARS Y S

a8 -

EERTIBETRABZESES

RZZFZENF+ZA=+—H8B EZRARQRAETE
TBRABMBEEZHBEALTRARR ZBRDTHES
BIEFEHFRAEGEG ([FHERBEEF ) $£352{&
BRBEARRAGFEEzEM L2 EEIXE IR
BIRETRIEMNE A RB R R Em AR I
™
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Percentage of

issued share capital
HERTREABS L

Chan How Chung, Victor 1,198,805,635

("Mr Chan") (Note)
FRZIE ([BREAED (Htaz)
Note:

Mr Chan was taken to be interested in these Shares by virtue of his 100%
attributable shareholding interest in Kingly Profits Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors or chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interest of a controlled
corporation
a2 N

16.20%
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SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 November 2002 (the
“Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to executives and employees of the Group and other persons
who have make a contribution to the Group as incentives and/or
rewards for their contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of
the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company may at any time
seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such
schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETEHSE(H)

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive
Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme will
expire on 22 November 2012.

At 31 December 2008, no Director had any interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2008, 199,000,000 number of share options were granted
under the Scheme. The closing prices of the Shares on 13 October
2008, being the trading date immediately before the date of grant
of such options was HK$0.285. The total number of Shares available
for issue upon exercise of the options outstanding under the Scheme
was 286,000,000 Shares (representing 3.87% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).

The fair value of options granted during the year as determined
by an independent third party valuer using a Black-Scholes pricing
model was approximately HK$2,212,569. Key assumptions used in
the valuation of the options granted on 14 October 2008 include
an expected volatility of share price of 73.209% per annum, a risk-
free rate of interest of 0.590% per annum on the date of grant.
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous year.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BAA R A E

BRE (B
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE(HE)

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRAE(E)
The movements in share options granted under the Scheme during RAFRRZTEMRLBREZZEHNOT :

the year are shown below:

Number of options

BREHE
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other Date of
At category category Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 offer to Exercise
Category of 1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the during  December grant  price per  Exercisable
participant 2008 year year year year the year 2008 options Share  period
(HKS)
R RZZBNE
ZBBRNE  EREEE FRERE t=h BhRe
SEAER -A-B B  HtER  EARE  FATE FRAM =t+-8 RHBH BROKE TEH
(&)
Employees 36,000,000 - - - - - 36,000,000 6/7/2006 0.295  13/7/2006 -
k& 12/712009
56,000,000 - - - (20,000,000) - 36,000,000 20/6/2007 0.79  9/7/2007 -
8/7/2010
5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000  25/7/2007 113 8/8/2007 -
(Note) 7182010
(H:2)
- - - 159,000,000 - - 159,000,000  14/10/2008 0.30  31/10/2008 -
3011072011
Other eligible 10,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - - 5,000,000 25/1/2007 113 8/8/2007 -
participants (Note) 7/8/2010
EhaER (Hit)
2EAL
- - - 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000  14/10/2008 0.30  31/10/2008 -
30/10/2011
Total#8 & 107,000,000 5,000,000  (5,000,000) 199,000,000 (20,000,000) - 286,000,000
Note: et -
The share options were held by an eligible participant who became an ZEBREH - ERFARARTEEEECAERZEA
employee of the Group during the year. Such share options were re-classified THE Al ZEEREEREFRNEIEMEERSH
from the category of “Other eligible participants” to “Employees” during the ATIZERETHSEEIRE] -
year accordingly.
31
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETEHSE(H)

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in businesses that are considered to compete or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

DNAEE

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

BEROIEZF2ZH

B EXHEES  ARF - HERAGF - HE&H
BB~ 7] sk EAEAAIF B A RN F AE I R L 2
BEMLZH BEEEEAEBARRBREAE
b RRZ BB s M E L o

EENREMERP 2 ER

180 AR B8, 1002)1 + % AT A T S o A A
SAREEHEEEANEBT 2 EH SR
Ea

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI")
BRI EER AR ([T

D & M Finance Limited (“"D&M")

TKR Finance Limited (“TKRF")
SEREEVBBERAA ([HE]D)

Drake & Morgan Limited (“Drake & Morgan™)

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI, Drake & Morgan and TKRF. He is a
director of D&M. The terms and conditions of the financing loans of
each of RPl, D&M and TKRF are market driven and agreed at arm’s
length between the borrowers and the financiers. The client base of
Drake & Morgan is different from that of the Group and the business
transactions are carried out at arm’s length and at the prevailing
market prices. When making decisions on the above competing
business, the relevant director, in the performance of his duty as a
director of the Company, has acted and will continue to act in the
best commercial interest of the Group.

Money lending
B

Money lending
=70

Money lending

ey
HA

Securities dealing

iy¢ s oD EE
BHEE

PR £ B % 4 A ZRET 7 « Drake & Morgan R R 2
EERWBEAZSERRZEEZRE - F ADAMZ
EE - HEFK DAMESESEZHBERZIL
FEGEHHEETSERATHREEE HEAFHER
JE o Drake & Morgan B P EAEBETF - #£HE
BRANFIERRBTTEET - RBET L5 F %
BZRRE BHEE(RBOREARQARES
ZHBR) CETHELHBERDFTEAE@ARER
EE eI
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Number of Shares

Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE(HE)

FERR

R-ZBZNE+=A=+—R0  RAAAREES

N HAE 55 %3361

FEzERMAE  T7&

I (BARBE-RBEFR—RBITRABRIN RARQF
B h R 2 EEIORBAT

Type of interest

Percentage of
issued share capital

RREH BRH#E R ER HEBRTREABO
Kingly Profits Corporation 1,198,805,635 Beneficial owner 16.20%
(Note) ExnEAA
(Hat)
Gandhara Master Fund Ltd. 514,875,000 Investment manager 6.95%
REKE
Bank of America Corporation 535,566,000 Interest of controlled corporations 7.24%

Note:

These Shares were held by Kingly Profits Corporation. The interest disclosed
herein was the same as the interest of Mr Chan as disclosed under “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2008, the
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETEHSE(H)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 15,825,000
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of HK$2,548,100 pursuant to the general mandate granted by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2008.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

BEEIREART LHRES

RAEE RERER _ZTN\E~A+/N\BE
TZBRRBFRE LREH 2 —MEE A28
B R(E2,548, 1008 TR XM RE AR A& H
15,825,000k EimAk - BRARMBRFBEOT :

Details of the repurchases of shares were as follows:

Total number of Aggregate

ordinary shares Repurchase consideration

Month/Year repurchased consideration per Share (expenses excluded)

F/8 EEEERRAH BERBENRE BRE(TFHAER)
Highest Lowest
BEE®R BEE®R

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

October 2008 15,825,000 0.181 0.139 2,548,100

—EENF+A

All the repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value
thereof. The above repurchases were effected with a view to benefit
shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings per
share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of any listed securities of
the Company during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Particulars of connected transactions of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out below:

(@) On 24 December 2007, Huge Top Enterprises Inc, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase
agreement with, among others, Giga Step Limited ("Giga Step")
to acquire the entire interest in the share capital of Jertford
Development Ltd ("Jertford") and the shareholder's loan due
from Jertford to Giga Step at a consideration of HK$75,000,000.
The consideration has to be satisfied in cash. Jertford indirectly
holds 26% of the registered capital of Shenzhen Kingsail
Software Tech Co Ltd ("Kingsail"), an existing subsidiary of the
Group.

FACHERAERFREY MAXRZEES
B A2 P SRR 9 2 M DA < 9T ER IR B
REAQAREHERERAN AMALBRES
BRI -

B EX Pt &SN - ARBHEERHERRRER
MEEEXBELARRAREMETES

BREXS
AAFARAEERBE-TE\FT=A=+—A
ILEEZ BER BHENT -

(@ RZEZLF+_AZ+WMA  ARA—KE
%2 & M B 2 FHuge Top Enterprises Inc. 2 (&
R E3E) Giga Step Limited ([ Giga Step ) 5732 3%
P&t - LA75,000,0007% 7T 2 X (B Wi Jertford
Development Ltd ([Jertford|) 2 2B 31T
AN K Giga StepfE WlertfordZz R E X - K (&
B S I o Jertfordf 15 B RN £ @38 A Kt
BRARRITMEHFEMER AR (M)
26% 2 FEMER -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As Giga Step and its beneficial owner are connected persons
of the Company by virtue of Giga Step being a substantial
shareholder of Kingsail, the acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since the
applicable ratios represents less than 2.5%, the acquisition is
subject to reporting and announcement requirements only under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction are
set out in the Company's announcement dated 28 December
2007. The transaction has been completed in April 2008.

On 31 December 2007, Multi Glory Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase
agreement with, among others, Billion Invest Limited ("Billion
Invest"), to acquire the entire interest in the share capital of Top
Manage Group Limited ("Top Manage") and the shareholder's
loan due from Top Manage to Billion Invest at a consideration
of HK$600,000,000. The consideration has to be satisfied as to
HK$240,000,000 in cash and as to HK$360,000,000 by issue
of 254,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price
of approximately HK$1.4173 per share to Billion Invest or its
nominees. Top Manage indirectly holds 20% of the registered
capital of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd ("Sinodata"), an
existing subsidiary of the Group.

As Billion Invest and its beneficial owner are connected persons
of the Company by virtue of Billion Invest being a substantial
shareholder of Sinodata, the acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A or the Listing Rules and is subject
to independent shareholders' approval. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 5 June 2008. The
transaction has been completed in June 2008.

Brokerage commission was received from Directors and their
associates in the ordinary course of the Group’s business of
dealing in securities. Commission rates are set at the same level
as those normally offered to third party clients. For the year
ended 31 December 2008, the total brokerage commission
received from associates of a Director in relation to securities
trading amounted to HK$20,000.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETEHSE(H)

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2008 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 140.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 21 to 25.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of REXLot Holdings Limited
(formerly REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited) (the “Company”),
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 39 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B Y% BE®RE(E)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

AW aE R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiet FET FET
(Restated)
(eE5)
Turnover EXR 5 1,173,000 412,661
Cost of sales/services rendered SHE /PTIRMERBE Z A (606,641) (166,649)
Other income Hip A 5 6,085 5,561
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih (B WEFE 5 (19,301) 23,029
Bad debts (written off)/recovery, net & (#i8Y) /W EFE (194) 2,208
(Allowance for)/reversal of RIZEHRRE (B BOBEFE
allowance for impairment
of bad and doubtful debts, net (44,995) 16,840
Gain on disposal of partial HENB DR s W
interests in subsidiaries 44 - 63,998
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (35,961) (32,132)
Administrative expenses GG (128,535) (103,000)
Operating profit meEw 343,458 222,516
Finance costs &R 8 (1,243) (2,506)
Profit before taxation BB AR R 342,215 220,010
Taxation ] 12 (51,414) (26,369)
Profit for the year FERA 290,801 193,641
Attributable to: N
Equity holders of the Company ALDBERBFAA 267,641 136,688
Minority interests DER R E S 23,160 56,953
290,801 193,641
Earnings per share BREA 14
~Basic — &R 3.68 cents il 2.19 cents 1l
~Diluted —#E 3.66 cents fli 2.17 cents 1l

The notes on pages 45 to 139 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Consolidated Balance Sheet

SAEEEREBEX

At 31 December 2008 W-_ZZN\E+-A=+—H

40

2008 2007
i 3-8 3 TR
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(o3 FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERS&E 15 136,968 89,445
Prepaid lease payments THF AR BARLONR
on land use rights 16 36,878 4,910
Investment properties REME 17 962 49,034
Goodwill S 18 1,479,022 595,357
Intangible assets BREE 19 116,882 95,638
Deposits for acquisition of BAMETHEAEZF®
leasehold land use rights 20 3,129 -
Statutory deposits EERE 22 632 2,178
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 23 1,535 2,111
Investment deposits REIS 24 126,000 168,620
Total non-current assets FRBEERAE 1,902,008 1,007,293
Current assets RBEE
Inventories "E 25 79,675 51,615
Trade receivables B E FEET 26 708,905 492,243
Prepayments, deposits and AR ke REMEYGRIE
other receivables 27 401,556 332,311
Financial assets at fair value BBERRARBIEZSREE
through profit or loss 28 9,311 30,072
Current tax refundable JERF B 2,705 2,698
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE % 29 244,043 689,342
Total current assets MEEELE 1,446,195 1,598,281
Total assets nEE 3,348,203 2,605,574
EQUITY BRRER
Capital and reserves FAREREEARGERARRE
attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital (L& 30 73,962 71,380
Reserves f#iE 2,904,321 2,242,586
2,978,283 2,313,966
Minority interests LERRER 82,272 127,437
Total equity ExeR 3,060,555 2,441,403
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

SEEERBEXR(HE)

At 31 December 2008 R-ZZN\E+-HA=+—H

2008 2007
—EZNf —TTHEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
tz3 FAET FET
(Restated)
(EE75)
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings FITER 34 11,807 12,675
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEEE 23 47,476 17,408
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 59,283 30,083
Current liabilities REaE
Trade payables FERE SN 32 153,880 104,048
Other payables and accruals HAh R B R IERT R 33 55,019 21,498
Bank borrowings RITER 34 2,351 1,381
Current tax liabilities BHBIEARE 17,115 7,161
Total current liabilities mBAGRE 228,365 134,088
Total liabilities HweE 287,648 164,171
Total equity and liabilities BREZREEASE 3,348,203 2,605,574
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,217,830 1,464,193
Total assets less current BEERRBAR
liabilities 3,119,838 2,471,486

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 17 April 2009 and are signed on behalf of the
Board by:

BBERRER _ZENFHUAT+LAEESS
ROEREETE YHTIEFTERRES

Chan How Chung,Victor Boo Chun Lon

BRZ 8 WUk BE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

The notes on pages 45 to 139 are an integral part of these EASE139E 2 B AR Bk — &b 1p -

financial statements.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREREH X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

Retained Attributable

Capital Share-based Exchange profit/  to equity
Share Share redemption  payment Special  translation (accumulated  holders of  Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) the Company ~ interests Total
YN
EXRE URBRA REERN/ EEBEA 2 |
Bx  RGEE BE FUEZRE  BAURE ENGE (RHFR)  EEEE  RRER ait
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
AT TEr FEr TEn AT TEr FEr TEn AT TET
At 1 January 2007 RZET+E-A-A 59,170 656,811 - 8,049 112,210 (1,301) (23567) 811432 118612 930,044
Exchange difference arisng ~~ ERIVEZFET
fom translation of foreign ~~ AEBHERES
operations recognised LEREE
directly in equity - - - - - 11,840 - 11,840 5,211 17,051
Additional investments in RIBLATZEME
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (53339 (53339
Recognition of share option ~~ BRERAA EHER
benefits at fair value RRERT - - - 24867 - - - 2867 - W87
Issue of new shares ¥HRG 12210 1335239 - - - - - 1,347,449 - 1347449
Transaction costs attributable 7731 {70
10 issue of new shares REBE - (18310 - - - - - (18310) - (18310)
Transfer to share premium RiTEERENS
on exercise of share options ~~ 2RAEE - 16,903 - (16903 - - - - - -
Profit for the year FEa - - - - - - 136688 136688 56953 193,641
At 31 December 2007 R-FTLET A
=1-A 71,380 1,990,643 - 16,013 112,270 10,539 113121 2,313,966 127437 2,441,403
Exchange difference arising ~ ERINERTET
from translation of foreign ASBINERES
operations recognised LEREE
directly in equity - - - - - 21,510 - 21510 4154 25,664
Additional investments in RMBRRZBMEE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (72,967) (72,967)
Minority interests arising from ~ EMBAFAMEE
acquisition of subsidiaries LOBREER - - - - - - - - 488 488
Recognition of share option ~~ EREAAEER
benefits at fair value ERERT - - - 221 - - - 2212 - 221
Issue of new shares &fraih 2740 373,060 - - - - - 375800 - 375800
Transaction costs attributable 4731 {380
to issue of new shares RHHA - (289) - - - - - (289) - (289)
Transfer to share premium BiTEERED
on exercise of share options ~~ BER(EE - 4,582 - (4582) - - - - - -
Repurchase of own shares BOARARA (158) (2399) 158 - - - (158) (2,557) - (2,557)
Profit for the year R - - - - - - W64 267641 23160 290,801
At 31 December 2008 R-EENETCA
=+-A 73962 2,365,597 158 13,643 112,210 32,049 380,604 2,978,283 82,212 3,060,555
The notes on pages 45 to 139 are an integral part of these FEASE 1398 VB A B HhE — LB o

financial statements.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2008 2007
—E2EN\E e e
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FET
(Restated)
(&E75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R EE
Profit before taxation BR B A Rl 342,215 220,010
Adjustments for: REIER
Fair value gains on REME 2 DR ERE
investment properties 5 - (21,967)

Interest income FIEBA 5 (1,727) (2,806)

Interest expenses FIER% 8 1,243 2,506

Share option benefits R ERA 31 2,212 24,867

Bad debts written off WsH AR 194 -

Allowance for/(reversal of RERRELE/ (BORE) FE

allowance for) impairment of

bad and doubtful debts, net 44,995 (16,840)
Gain on disposal of partial HEWB AR R Wa

interests in subsidiaries - (63,998)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 31,043 19,241
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERRE

plant and equipment ZEB 3,160 -
Fair value losses/(gains) on BBBREDAEHEN

financial assets at fair value SREEZDAERE/ (W)

through profit or loss 14,973 (1,673)

Operating profit before changes ~ Rt EEELF#BA 2 KL EH

in working capital 438,308 159,340
Changes in working capital EEELEB(FEENEZYE

(excluding the effects of REAANREZERER)

acquisition and exchange

differences on consolidation)

Decrease/(increase) in EERER D/ (Em)

statutory deposits 1,545 (46)
Increase in inventories FEE (23,736) (701)
Increase in trade receivables B E 5 8RR E A (250,940) (162,197)
Increase in prepayments, deposits BAR - e kA ERFIEEM

and other receivables (12,278) (394,248)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets BBEFREZALEFEY

at fair value through profit or loss SREBERD,/(BN) 5,788 (8,111)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances  $R{TEFURA /(3B 10)

- segregated accounts -BIRP 13,120 (13,906)
Increase in trade payables BB S ERFE M 32,259 64,050
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — E fth & <t 518 2 JE 5T 5008

and accruals i,/ (i) 34,515 (4,835)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEKHRE/ (A HEFE

operations 238,581 (360,654)
Interest received BUF 8 1,727 2,806
Interest paid EfHE (1,243) (2,506)
Taxation paid BRHIE (11,163) (11,092)
Net cash generated from/(used in) R&ZEHRE,/ (A BLFE

operating activities 227,902 (371,446)

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH




REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (contfinued)

GEeEHEREBER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

2008 2007
—EENE e 2
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hri FET FET
(Restated)
(mE5))
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEARTEIOND - 123,287
Purchase of property, plant BEME BRERF
and equipment 15 (54,603) (71,951)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWME BERREMERE
plant and equipment 28 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR 43 (247,048) -
Capital injection in the joint venture ~ FEBRAEE = (57,809)
Increase in intangible assets B AR 19 (17,090) (32,684)
Increase in interests in subsidiaries RITB AR EREM (354,480) (176,997)
Disposal of partial interests HERBLA RN R
in subsidiaries 44 - 215,227
Deposits paid for acquisition of BABETHEREZENTS
leasehold land use rights (3,129) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFARLTE (676,322) (927)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Issue of shares, net of issuing costs BIRG (MBRETER) 15,511 1,119,139
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEHFITEXN (1,656) (123,681)
Repurchase of own shares BEARSRGO (2,557) -
Net cash generated from RETHFERSFE
financing activities 11,298 995,458
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH BR&RESZEN(HD) /
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R (437,122) 623,085
Exchange gain on cash and BekBeSBYM ELRE
cash equivalents 4,056 11,129
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R-F-BZRERELEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 657,664 23,450
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTZA=+-HZRERRLEEY
AT 31 DECEMBER 29 224,598 657,664
The notes on pages 45 to 139 are an integral part of these FASE 1398 Y B A B HE — Iy o

financial statements.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

B % R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

REXLot Holdings Limited (formerly REXCAPITAL Financial
Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
34/F, COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparing for the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding
company of the Group in Hong Kong on 15 August 2000 and
its shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 September 2000.

By a special resolution passed on the special general meeting
held on 30 January 2009, it was resolved that the Company’s
name be changed from “REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings
Limited” to “REXLot Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the
Chinese name “#HZ&RHPFIFR AR AF]" as a secondary name of
the Company.

During the year, the Group involves in the following principal
activities:

o Lottery business
o Financial services:
Broking
Securities margin financing
Investment trading and holding
o Money lending

The lottery business comprises development and production
of lottery machines, related operating software system and
networks for lottery industry and the distribution and marketing
of lottery products in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC").
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applicable of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

2.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

FESHHEER

(a)
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2008 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
investment properties (see note 2(i)) and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (see note 2(f)) are stated at
their fair values.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not
owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between
minority interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group's interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Loan from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with note 2(p) depending on
the nature of the liabilities.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group and are recorded in the income
statement. Purchases from minority interests result in
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

2.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BAA R A E

FEEHBERE)
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves
the establishment of a corporation, partnership or other
entity in which the Group has an interest. A joint venture
is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and one
or more of other parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control, which is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and
exists only when the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by proportionate consolidation. The Group
combines its share of the joint ventures' individual income
and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a
line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. The Group recognises the portion of gains
or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint
venture that it is attributable to the other ventures. The
Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses
from the joint venture that result from the Group’s
purchase of assets from the joint venture until it resells
the assets to an independent party. However, a loss on the
transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of
current assets, or an impairment loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiaries/jointly
controlled entities at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries/jointly controlled entities (using
proportionate consolidation) is separately disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHHEHE(E)

()

Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans

and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every

reporting date.

(f)

TREE

AEBEIESREENRAL BABBEREA
REFENSREEREREURFE
DEITEBARNEMEEBANERN - &
BEERVBARETRENDE AN
BEREBENTEIE -

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss () BBEBRENTEFTEZ EHEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are MABRRAANEAENEREE
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is REBIFEEZEMEE - WE—
classified in this category if acquired principally for EHemEEBANBENAREHR
the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in HE BlZBEeRmEES B RILA
this category are classified as current assets. Ale WERBEESHEANEBEE -

(i) Loans and receivables (i) B BMEW B

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’'s loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “prepayments, deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and bank balances” in the
consolidated balance sheet (notes 2(m) and 2(n)).

EXMERREAENTESRE
E - BEEXAEEMNK T
ERMIBHE - EALEEEAE
WARHESE ESRTREMLE
BEERUFENEE peELE
L SRIE o B RIBIIARE EE -
WHHAELEERE T @A LIE
Broh - BLRIBIEIE R EE -
AEBEBZERMEWRIBELSS
EBERANBEIEREZER]
[FER R e & H b W 5k IE |
RIRERBITHES] (FF2m) &
2(n)) °
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Financial assets (continued)

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss' category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the period in which
they arise.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing models refined to
reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient
to write off their costs, less accumulated impairment
losses and residual values, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

- Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 20%
— Lottery machines 4 — 12 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25%
— Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
— Motor vehicles 19 -20%

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item, is included in the income
statement in the period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating
to buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are
amortised over the period of the lease on the straight-
line basis which is charged to the profit or loss. Prepaid
lease payments on land use rights relating to investment
properties and properties developed for sale are not
amortised and included as part of the cost of such
properties.

2.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s 12 AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBLLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

)

Investment properties

Investment properties, being properties owned or
held under finance leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value. These include lands held for currently
undetermined future use. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2(t)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(u)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Prepaid lease payments are accounted for
as described in note 2(h).

Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified as
investment property at fair value. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(k)).
intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Amortisation of

are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEE (&)
() Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued) () BEEE (BBRM) (B)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

(i)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five to

EERERFROEVEESFAAR
BRE  LLREREEMETRESHE

TmeL B EMAERETR - MREE
MR E AT DR EREE  EEW
FEHEREE A EIEE - BE/BIELZR
R R

EREBERBERER - BEMNKREDDSHRIE
EEFTHMEFT IR ESEE - B NNRE
BETREBREENENTFELREER
WEBBRMEENKREE -

WMEBRABFERNENEERRBED
o ARAREESREE-

() TR
B 15 B B B0 5 A RIS
K P 5 B U4 AT 2 A B K
EBITAR  RERAT R 5t
A B A R -

ten years.
Costs associated with developing or maintaining BRI EREF N AEER
computer software programmes are recognised as RACERAREBRAXIE -

expenses as incurred.

(i)  Deferred development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop
computer software is capitalised and deferred
only when the projects are clearly defined; the
expenditure is separately identifiable and can be
measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that
the projects are technically feasible, and the products
have commercial value. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

(i) AEAEL G 2K A
MEERAMHBEEMEENRAXR
SHEBEEAABHAE XA
5% B A ART SER T T AR E ¢ BE
BEMEERBEAEZRM ER/AT:
AREMABEEENBRLT &
FEAALERLEREER - THALSE
RENERMEMSEEER I -
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEESTHEE)
() Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued) () BEEE (BBRM) (B)
(i)  Deferred development costs (continued) (ii) EIERTERA (&)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less i RE A 85 B 7N DA K 7R 2 5 8 T
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated ER 2EHRERBE (RMTEE2K) © B
impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Amortisation BERFEREEsBESD (AZE
is provided on the straight-line basis over the mIEARELEERHRRZ _+F)
commercial lives of the underlying production, T UABESH -

subject to a maximum of 20 years commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial

production.

(i) Operating right (iif) AZEE
Operating right represents expenditure incurred on KERERRE—HEAEER L 2L
obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre. The EREMEE I H KEREAERE
operating right is with infinite useful life and carried PR {55 R EABR + 3 ¥ B AN R (E ] 2 5T
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and WEERYIE  AREFETRE
tested for impairment annually. AIE, o

(iv) Technical know-how (iv) FEHF = P71
Technical know-how represents the technology, RMEMMBEEBLEER 2R
technical information, know-how and experience in BB EM - EFTME NG -
relation to the lottery business. The technical know- BMBEMAEEEERERAHAR
how is with infinite useful life and carried at cost less I ¥z A AR (E (7] R &R E B 18 5
any accumulated impairment losses and tested for R ARESFETREANR -

impairment annually.

(k) Impairment of assets k) EERE
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and () RAGEZSRE M EYW B R E

other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than EAFES (RIB AR R EEESE
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled BB ERIN - RHsE2(k)() R E
entities: see note 2(k)(ii)) and other current and ity 78 B K2 FE 7% B FE YR I8 1A LA BK AR
non-current receivables that are stated at cost BB EKAINE  BeREgls
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance HHBRS UBTELEBEER
sheet date to determine whether there is objective THERE BREZBEESEAR
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of SETEI T AU LBIESE
impairment includes observable data that comes to BRI REER

the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors; - BBANEARSREE
- a breach of contract, such as a default or — EBRAEH flniExF S sk AR
delinquency in interest or principal payments; EANE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(k)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtors; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

effect of discounting is material.

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

-  prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale); and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating units (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEESTHEE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) AaEEZFEE)
- Recognition of impairment losses - BRBEERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see note 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost less
any allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts
(see note 2(k)), except for the following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts; and

—  short-term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less
any allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates (and laws) enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. However, if the deferred tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and
assesses the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax
assets and the future taxable profit to determine whether
any recognised deferred tax assets should be derecognised
and any unrecognised deferred tax assets should be
recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities, if any,
measured in accordance with note 2(s), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
for the following payables:

—  short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest-free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Borrowings

(r)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and
duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Employee benefits

(i)  Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognised as
expenses in the income statement as incurred. The
subsidiaries have no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the balance
sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date
for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried

forward.

(iii)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting

period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options

are exercised.

(iv)  Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—BLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

(if)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(s)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with note
2(s)(iii) below. Contingent liabilities acquired in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued are disclosed in accordance with note 2(s)(iii)
below.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHHEE(E)

(s)

()

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)
(iii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount. when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods

and services, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(s)

(t)
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(i) Gain or loss on investments held for trading (i) FHEEEEKEZNamlER

Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value on the
balance sheet date.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Income from provision of lottery machines and

related services, comprising:

(1) Sales of goods
Sales of goods including lottery machines and
related software systems are recognised when
the goods are delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods;
the related risks and rewards of ownership
and collectibility of the related receivables are
reasonably assured.

(2) Income from lottery business
Income from lottery business including
consultancy service, maintenance service
and other related services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the service is
rendered.

(3) Income from sharing of lottery sales
Income from sharing of lottery sales is
recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreement.

Rental income from investment properties

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased assets. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payment
receivables.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH

2. FEEFBERGE)
() WARER(E)
(iii) FEHF R R IR IRFHMA -

(iv)

(v)

(1) EmiHE
EmHERRYERERIEH

B RGENEREZXERTFPY
%%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂfﬁ*“bmﬁfﬁﬁ
R mAERR  EERIA
75 W B AR B P M SR OR T & IR HE
& e

2 KEFEREBZHEA
REXEEBZBABEER
ARTS ~ 4 ol AR 75 Ko H A 4 BE AR
% REHRSE Z & R
BARR

(3) EHEFEERIKA
EEF R W am R ARER B
BB EEER -

K EREYRE e 2 WA
REKLLHENESRATIREE
FHHRZRERAER HEREE
EFHRAKRREEREEEENT
SR EENHEER KRS
RER RAEKEE R FREAK
o e

FILEHA
MBWAR B F A ERER -

67



68

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (continued)
(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis
to costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
income statement over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal instalments.

(u) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the balance sheet as prepaid lease
payments on land use rights which are stated at cost
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease term.

2.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

TEEHBERE)

(t)

(u)

LON 4¢P

(vi) ECHFHER
BT 74 B Ty P & FR T TE R4S 7 B 2
"HeamEHEGHREREAFET
LATER - B R XIAR B
B BRMEMAERREERRE
ZHARENHEBEAREA &
ZHBEEERBER  RATEDE
ABEHRAERBEA  LABFDE
REMEEMBEAIERAFHEA
Wk e

HE
HAEBEIE AL (BE-BAXSH—
RINR5) HEE RERERBRNEE -]
LR TEEENERBNEAR £
ZENR AERLHEBRRHEE A
ME - EERENHEALHNELE
FHERE MABERLHFED S LEE
HPERER

() tHMREFTHE
REG L REFRESERAR
B SEEEFR(BEERBEN
R DR HONEEREREE
Mg F a0 2 B FELIINE
RIFIAR DAL 2 L3 RIEF I

THEM I EAEEEE  KIF
ERNEOHMSEAEA - 8
FERMPRAER TSR REE R
KEHE RAHEANEMEE -
WELEHERATRAEN LI 2
FREERBERBER AL HEME
ZEMNBEHONFORE - AR AT
RENEEFRER R BRI -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FE##



REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—BLLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Leases (continued)

(v)

(i)  Leases of land and buildings (continued)

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

(i)  Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessee, payments made under operating leases,
net of any incentives received from the lessor, are
charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease period. Contingent rentals (if
any) are charged or credited to the income statement
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the functional currency rates ruling at the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities are currencies other than
HK$. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into HK$ at
the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
and their income statements are translated into HK$
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The exchange differences arising on the translation are
included in the foreign exchange translation reserve
within equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign entity is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that
they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (i) or is an entity under the control,
or significant influence of such individuals; or

joint control

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH

2. FEEFEEE)
(x) BAEAL
L EHBEREMS - —HFEERALSE
EzRBEAL:

(y)

() RITEERIBAREB-—R2HZAET
)|/\¢ ) 7S &2 (B 2 0 B IR e AR R
RTEHAKETEEATED
S AN SR B A AR A

(i) AEERZTXARZES

(i) ZARAEEZHERRHAED
XXEERAEE)

(iv) BAOTREEERAEEGRAEE
EBEABZHRESZKNEZERR

B AAERSALRS KRR
HREAREZEM

) BABOFFZ—TTZERBBER

EHEALEH  AAEHREA
YEIER:

Vi) ZANRAEEEENGEMSELZ
BB ENG AR AREBES
ZAEERE -

AREANLTZERZRB AT AN HEZ
BETRIRTEZALTRIZALS
BIZUEHE -

EIIP

&

U i

Q

DEEHE
DEEAEEARERHEEmAIRH
R (XBOE)  HEE—HFENLE
REAHREERIIRERE QbR 55
B R 3 P abin - %0 JR AT A B RBR &
S E AL AER o

BRAKENAIHERSE R0 A%E
REZSHBRRTCEEUNEBOHE
HEREERSETA ﬁﬁiﬂlﬁ"*ﬁé#%ﬁll
NREBRMETLAZ5 -

71



72

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenues, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include inventories, trade receivables and property, plant
and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets,
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidated process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than
one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate

assets, interest-bearing borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are

first effective or available for early adoption for the current

accounting period of the Group.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and
their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

The adoption of the above new or revised HKFRS has had no
material effect on how the results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
made.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(k). The recoverable amounts of
cash—generating units have been determined based on
value—in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (note 18).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & ZE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving inventories
The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the inventories may be obsolete or slow-moving. The
identification of obsolete or slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the inventories
and charges in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

2B \F+ZA=+-RILFE
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(iv)

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax losses of
approximately HK$49,102,000 (2007: HK$99,799,000)
was not recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax expenses in the year in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(v)

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group’s financial statements account
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making
its judgement.

4.
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TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES) /

GAINS, NET

REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

Turnover represents commission income and handling fee

income, interest income and income from provision of lottery

machines and related services.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, other income and other

EEE At ARHE M (BER)

Wy 3 5 8

LEEBRADRARTFEEBRA - FIESBA R

RUF EH M AAARBUA

AEBMEERE  HAMRAREM (BER) 1K

(losses)/gains, net is as follows: HFEEAWLT
2008 2007
—EETNF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover BEE
Commission income and BeWARFEERA
handling fee income 5,515 20,812
Interest income from: RENATEEBEZFEWA :
- Banks —R17 145 1,570
- Margin clients -HFREF 5,433 7,388
- Loan receivables —EIRE R 11,393 9,481
Income from provision of REYEHRBERBERA
lottery machines and
related services 1,150,514 373,410
1,173,000 412,661
Other income Hi A
Interest income on bank deposits  SR1TTF KA B WA 1,727 2,806
Government subsidy BT #8 Bh 339 697
Sundry income HEKA 3,956 2,052
Rental income from investment BEWMEZHESEKA
properties 63 6
6,085 5,561
Other (losses)/gains, net Hi(B5B) " WEFE
Net losses on disposal of LEBBEBRRAABETENS R
financial assets at fair value BEZEBERFHE
through profit or loss (4,002) (151)
Fair value (losses)/gains on BREREREANBHENEREE
financial assets at fair value ZRRIE(EBER) e
through profit or loss (14,973) 1,673
Fair value gains on investment wEMEZ A ENE
properties - 21,967
Exchange losses (= (326) (460)
(19,301) 23,029
1,159,784 441,251
Total interest income on BBBERIEAARENEN
financial assets not at TREE BT BIWA
fair value through profit
or loss 18,698 21,245
77
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

78

SEGMENT INFORMATION

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following three major operating divisions:

i) Lottery business
i) Financial services
i) Money lending

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial and
operating activities, the primary segment reporting is by
business segments and the secondary segment reporting is by
geographical segments.

(i)  The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2008
and the segment assets and liabilities at 31 December
2008 are as follows:

6. DWMEHR
%7']'%/'\
BAEER AEBOABAT=ZHEXEEXES
iRl =

) EEXRB

i) SRR
iy B
$E¢FZKEIZW &

Bk
EWRDREBOHE S
@’“‘Mﬁ:‘“

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2008
R-BENF+-A=+-BREEZBHLFE

Lottery Financial Money
business services lending Total
KHEEK S ER% BX =
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FExT FEx FET
Turnover HERE 1,150,514 11,093 11,393 1,173,000
Segment results DEEEA 424,407 (42,396) (31,330) 350,681
Net unallocated KH¥E
expenses X F 58 (8,466)
Profit before taxation B B4 A 5 A 342,215
Taxation g (51,414)
Profit for the year NEFE = F 290,801
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 2,815,434 42,661 208,730 3,066,825
Unallocated assets RKOBEE 281,378
Total assets BB E 3,348,203
Liabilities BfE
Segment liabilities HEARE 251,158 24,310 45 275,513
Unallocated liabilities KNEEaRE 12,135
Total liabilities waf 287,648
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEHER(E)
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued) K5 (&
(i) (continued) iy (&)

HE-TELF+-A=+—BLFE
SHEMRN BB LETZA=T—
AZHBAERBENT :

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2007
and the segment assets and liabilities at 31 December
2007 are as follows:

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2007
RZZE+F+_A=+—BREBEZBELEFE

Lottery Financial Money

business services lending Total

TEER TRRH % CEl

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

(Restated)

(=51)

Turnover BERE 373,410 29,770 9,481 412,661

Segment results DEEER 243,380 795 11,864 256,039

Net unallocated KD

expenses X F5 (36,029)

Profit before taxation % &5 B v A 220,010

Taxation BiIA (26,369)

Profit for the year RFE & F 193,641
Assets BE

Segment assets DEEE 1,692,892 104,264 316,092 2,113,248

Unallocated assets DEREE 492,326

Total assets BEE 2,605,574
Liabilities =L

Segment liabilities SEEE 109,661 52,175 - 161,836

Unallocated liabilities KoEBE 2,335

Total liabilities waf 164,171
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

(i) Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BEE-EZN\E+-A=+t-RHLEE

Lottery Financial Money
business services lending Total
EEEH SRRH BR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT FET
Other information HtE#
Depreciation and o B 8
amortisation 30,048 995 - 31,043
Allowance for impairment RIZ 8k
of bad and doubtful BB
debts - 4,698 40,297 44,995
Bad debts ZR - 194 - 194
Capital expenditure BEARRE 71,163 530 = 71,693
For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-_TTLHE+-_A=-+—HLTFE
Lottery Financial Money
business services lending Total
WEER TRRB &% a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FiET FET FEr FrEr
Other information H it & K}
Depreciation and o & B 5N
amortisation 18,049 1,192 - 19,241
Allowance for impairment RIZBR
of bad and doubtful VEREREY
debts - 620 - 620
Capital expenditure BEARMY 104,472 163 - 104,635
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s 12 AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBLLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
The Group's business segments operate in two main

geographical areas.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2008

DHREN (F)
HE D B
REEEBOBRMEZIEMREE -

R-BENFETZA=+—-BREZEZHLEE

Segment
results and
profit/(loss) Total Total Capital
Turnover before taxation assets liabilities expenditure
DEEER
BRB A
EEE BN (EB) BEEHE aEEE EXRMAX
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 22,486 (82,192) 533,712 36,500 530
The PRC A 1,150,514 424,407 2,814,491 251,148 71,163
1,173,000 342,215 3,348,203 287,648 71,693
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2007
RZZEZ+F+_A=1+—-BREEZBLFE
Segment
results and
profit/(loss) Total Total Capital
Turnover  before taxation assets liabilities expenditure
DEEBER
BT A
BEE RN/ (EE) EEHRE BERE EAXHEX
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FrET FrET FrET FrET FrET
(Restated)
(m=71)
Hong Kong BB 39,251 (23,352) 913,787 54,501 163
The PRC s 373,410 243,362 1,691,787 109,670 104,472
412,661 220,010 2,605,574 164,171 104,635
81
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

7. STAFF COSTS 7. BERX
2008 2007
—EENEF —ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYHZ
benefits in kind 52,820 41,119
Bonuses TEAT 1,316 -
MPF contributions iR MK 292 234
Social security costs f& RER A 1,824 736
Employee share option benefits EEBRERT 1,768 19,057
58,020 61,146
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMRAK
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Interest on bank loans and RITERRBEZF B
overdraft 1,121 1,285
Interest on client payables with BT BN 2 e
no fixed repayment terms TP RIEN S 122 1,221
Total interest expense on ABEREEARLEFEN
financial liabilities not at TRBECHNERZEE
fair value through profit or loss 1,243 2,506
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

9. BRBLATEF

2008 2007
ZEENE ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
The Group's profit before 75 [ PR B A A
taxation is stated after RE5FIE MR
charging the following: U T&IE
Auditors’ remuneration Z BB & 1,500 1,730
Commission expense AeZ il 2,078 9,978
Research and development i 7T & B
costs DN 900 3,921
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME  BFERZE
plant and equipment Z B8 3,160 -
Depreciation and IATIEE MY E R B
amortisation on:
— Property, plant and - WEREE
equipment 28,855 17,054
- Prepaid lease payments on —TiE AR ENE
land use rights LIRS 758 178
— Intangible assets —-EBWEE 1,430 2,009
Operating lease rentals in respect WAEMERABEZ
of office premises and wEHER®
warehouse 11,174 6,571
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

10. EEM<
AEEEEMESRIE ETHRAREB(AAME
BIYE161 KETRMAT ¢

2008 2007
—EENE ZTELF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: we
Executive Directors WITES 120 120
Independent Non-executive BIEMITES
Directors 360 360
480 480
Other emoluments for BITEECEMBS -
Executive Directors:
Salaries, housing, other e FEEE
allowances and benefits H b2 AL &
in kind BN = 3,910 3,607
MPF contributions BESHAN 12 12
4,402 4,099
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIYFHITES

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors

were as follows:

ENTEIFNTESTZB/EWT

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

YUEN Wai Ho B (& & 120 120

CHOW Siu Ngor NS 120 120
LEE Ka Lun (appointed on ERB(R_ZTZLFNA

17.04.2007) ++REZE) 120 85
ON Kien Quoc (resigned on  BEEB(R_TZ+FMHA

17.04.2007) ++BET) = 35

360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the year. In
addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any
of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2007:

Nil).

FAMEEGENTELFNTESZ
B o oM ARE B BT T (E {7 5 E B
SERMAREBEHMAR 2 RE R

BomE(ZET+F |) o
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME ()
(b) Executive Directors (b) BITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments

FeEZER RIKER
e BEYR & FT B B & 4 28

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
2008 —EENFE
Executive Directors: WMITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor 12 - 3,910 12 3,922
BOO Chun Lon MUk B 120 - - 120
120 3,910 12 4,042
2007 —EEBLHF
Executive Directors: BITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor BRZH2 - 3,607 12 3,619
BOO Chun Lon MUk e 120 - - 120
120 3,607 12 3,739
There was no arrangement under which any Director FARAW BT EMEFTEANEXREBENER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the RS2 28 o I REBWEN FEME
year. In addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group EMIERMAREE I MAR 2 LB R B
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon ZHE(ZETLF &) o
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2007: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 11.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2007: one) was a director of the Company whose
emoluments were included in the disclosures in note 10 above.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

IEREHFMAL

FAXEERIEREHFMALZPERE S
(ZEZLF: —R)ARAEF  HB2EHR
REXHMEEI0 - EBpNE (ZEFTLF - OF)

The emoluments of the remaining four (2007: four) individuals AT zZBemAT :
were as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and e FEER
benefits in kind B 9,300 8,553
MPF contributions BB T HR 48 48
9,348 8,601
Their remuneration was within the following bands: BELHEHERT
2008 2007
—EENFE —ET+EF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EBEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7c £3,000,0007%8 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7L £5,000,0007% 7T - 1
4 4
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILtFE

12. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the financial
statements as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for
the year (2007: 17.5%).

One of the jointly controlled entities of the Group’s lottery
business in the PRC, Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd, is
eligible for application of tax holiday and concession which are
in the form of three years tax exemption from the year 2003 to
2005 and followed by a 50% reduction of the applicable tax
rate in the following three years commencing from 2006. The
applicable income tax rate for this jointly controlled entity in the
current year is 7.5% (2007: 7.5%).

The applicable income tax rates for the remaining subsidiaries
of the Group’s lottery business in current year are ranging from

15% to 25% (2007: 15% to 33%) as their tax holiday and

12.

BiE

R AN 82 B 72 7K 4F FE 30 4 AT () 14 5T R SR RO
Ao El RPBHRERALTEERETEFER
BE(ZCEELF 1 17.5%) °

REBREEBEP KNP BEZ LEZEH
BRI AXKENBEEBRAR - & EKRES
HEREERRER AT =F_ZFTH
FRES=ZFHRERR  RAE-ZTTFHEA
HE=ZFRERB LA - LHREHE
BRFAZERMERBEEARTS% (ZTF L
£ :75%) ¢

HRAAREYREB LR B AR Z 25
REEH(WA)BER - AZFERARRAF

BZERAEHRBRER/RN FI15%E25% (=F

concession periods, if any, expired. T+F 15%F33%) °
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income FERREANK 2z HIEBE HEE
statement represents:
2008 2007
ZEENE —ETLEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Current tax: B AIRIE
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBABNEWR - 276
- PRC income tax — ':F‘ Bl P15 B 22,299 14,917
— Overprovision in respect of —BEFEBERE
previous year (425) -
21,874 15,193
Deferred tax: BRI IE
Deferred taxation relating to the & B8 & 4 2 ¥ B & ¥
origination and reversal of ERZIEERIE
temporary differences (note 23) (Htit23) 29,448 11,176
Attributable to change REEHEN
in tax rate (note 23) (B12#23) 92 -
Taxation charge BIgZ W 51,414 26,369
87
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
domestic taxation rates applicable to profit of the consolidated
companies is as follows:

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

BE (#8)

ARG BRR B AT S F 2 BRI i £ 2 8RR (JA
ERARBEERTEMNZ AR ERAE)BE

s

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FEr
Profit before taxation B A A1 5 A 342,215 220,010
Taxation at the domestic RAMPTSIE16.5%
income tax rate of (ZZZT+EF :175%) %
16.5% (2007:17.5%) 56,466 38,502
Tax effect of income not BARB WA ZHIBEZE
subject to taxation (14,473) (16,200)
Tax effect of expenses not N A g 750 TR 28 B R 2
deductible for taxation AY 2 BIETE
purposes 5,040 8,758
Tax effect of utilisation of PHAREBERZHELE
tax losses (1,059) -
Tax effect of temporary REREREZRE  BIETE
differences not recognised 852 (1,714)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERZBRBERHIELE
recognised (971) 766
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AN EMERT F AR
in prior years recognised REHIBEEE
for the year - (890)
Overprovision in respect of EFBERE
previous year (467) -
Effect of different tax rates of B H Ath B VA A [ A4S =
subsidiaries operating B AE 2 TR R &
in other jurisdictions 5,934 (2,853)
Decrease in opening deferred TR R T 5l Bz B4
taxation asset resulting from RERBEERD
a decrease in applicable tax rate 92 -
Taxation charge BIA S 51,414 26,369
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

13. DIVIDEND 13. RR
The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend in ExgRa TRNBZ_ZZENE+A
respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil). =+ HLEFERE(ZZEZLF: &) -
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14, BEREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXZEF
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREABINZEARAE=FTAAR
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the HEERNBRAFEAEZEITRG 2 INE
Company by the weighted average number of shares in FHHEE -

issue during the year.

2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
Profit attributable to equity ARG E=EFFE A
holders of the Company FE (& M (F#&7T)
(in thousand HK$) 267,641 136,688
Weighted average number BEITERRZ
of ordinary shares in DN 19 8 (FAR)
issue (in thousand) 7,282,833 6,231,200
Basic earnings per share BREREFN 3.68 cents 1l 2.19 cents {ll
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year and on the weighted average number
of ordinary shares, being the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on deemed exercise of all share
options outstanding during the year.

14.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

BRER (B)

(b) BREERF
BREE RN R F R MR AT R
HINEFIHE - REtEEBRELRRN ZF
NEZETEARNEFGREBEERFA
PR E 1T P B R 17 68 8 P A T #8815 3%
T2 EBIRINEFIGE -

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
Profit for the year, used in AEEmA - BUETE
the basic and diluted FRER R EE AT
earnings per share (F&T)
calculation
(in thousand HK$) 267,641 136,688
Weighted average number RAUFTEERER
of ordinary shares in ANz FRNDET
issue during the year TmR N T A
used in the basic earnings (FR%)
per share calculation
(in thousand) 7,282,833 6,231,200
Weighted average number BRERFRNABETEME
of ordinary shares RITEERERE T EE
assumed to have been BT 2 LR ANE T A
issued at no consideration (F1)
on deemed exercise of
all share options
outstanding during the
year (in thousand) 39,022 82,671
7,321,855 6,313,871
Diluted earnings per share SR#EERT 3.66 cents 1l 2.17 cents {l
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. X - BELHRE
Furniture, Plant

Leasehold  Leasehold Lottery  fixtures and and Motor

buildings improvements machines  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
(Note)

BEns G- 2B

HEEF %8 P2 R&E BERME RE &it

(K33

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

Cost BA&
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+#-f—-H 4,238 6,402 32,625 19,913 24,123 2,498 89,799
Additions RE 52 4,094 46,830 2,844 13,647 4,484 71,951
Reclassified to investment BNNEARENE
properties (note 17) (H1i£17) (798) - - - - - (798)
Elimination of subsidiaries HENERAR - - - (937) (14,989) (1,055) (16,980)
Exchange realignment MEHRR 209 7 2,407 525 1,564 206 4,983
At 31 December 2007 RZZ5+E
+-fA=1+-8 3,701 10,568 81,862 22,345 24,346 6,133 148,955
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) WE M B2 BIFFE £ (#5743 - - - 801 1,177 250 2,028
Additions NE - 6,822 10,335 8,040 26,458 2,948 54,603
Disposal and write off HERMH - - - (1,124) (5,809) (610) (7,543)
Reclassified from investment properties RRANEENDE
(note 17) (Hr#17) 18,497 - - - - - 18,497
Exchange realignment HERE 231 322 5,116 579 1,522 361 8,131
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+ZA=t-H 22,429 17,112 97,313 30,641 47,694 9,082 224,871
Accumulated depreciation RithE
At 1 January 2007 WZE2+F-A-B 689 3,862 15,620 16,421 8,910 1,158 46,660
Charge for the year REEAR 131 1,167 7,922 1373 5,928 533 17,054
Reclassified to investment ENNBARENE
properties (note 17) (H#17) (73) - - - - - (73)
Elimination of subsidiaries HEHBATA - - - 221) (6,429) (187) (6,837)
Exchange realignment MERE 55 2 1,492 322 M 98 2,706
At 31 December 2007 RZEELE
+-A=1t-H 802 5,056 25,034 17,895 9,121 1,602 59,510
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) YEBH B 2 A& £ (#/:43) - - - 579 563 128 1270
Charge for the year REENR 501 1,718 16,259 2,194 7,259 924 28,855
Disposal and write off HE R - - - (745) (3,136) (474) (4,355)
Exchange realignment MERE 50 29 1,564 315 570 95 2,63
At 31 December 2008 RZZBNE
+ZA=t-H 1,353 6,803 42,857 20,238 14,377 2,275 87,903
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2008 R=ZBBNE
+ZA=+-H 21,076 10,909 54,456 10,403 33,317 6,807 136,968
At 31 December 2007 RIETLE
+ZA=t-H 2,899 5,512 56,828 4,450 15,225 4,531 89,445
Note: B st -
All leasehold buildings are situated outside Hong Kong and are held FMEREEFHUMREBSUIINEIE - WIAFEIE L
under medium term leases. #FAH -
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 16. THEAEZEAMEOMNR
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Cost %N
At beginning of the year REH] 5,319 6,300
Reclassified to investment BN BEARREME
properties (note 17) (Kiat17) — (1,141)
Reclassified from investment HIREMESEHHE
properties (note 17) (Hist17) 32,639 -
Exchange realignment HNEE 58 B 105 160
At end of the year REL 38,063 5,319
Accumulated amortisation Eg £
At beginning of the year REF ) 409 318
Amortisation for the year RNEFHH 758 178
Reclassified to investment ENOBRIREME
properties (note 17) (H1az17) = (110)
Exchange realignment SN 58 B 18 23
At end of the year REL 1,185 409
Net book value REFRE
At end of the year REFR 36,878 4,910
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights are RNREFARE L R tifE AENERSBES
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases. BN FHRTHHEE -
At 31 December 2008, bank borrowings of approximately RZZEENF+ZA=Z+—8B " BH
HK$13,132,000 (2007: Nil) were secured on leasehold buildings 13,132,0008 L (ZZEZ+F : &) ZIRITER
and land use rights for the carrying values of approximately LABREE D B4 518,127,000 T (—ZTZ+
HK$18,127,000 (2007: Nil) and HK$31,930,000 (2007: Nil) F &) 131,930,000 T (Z T 5 &)
respectively. ZHERF R HFERBEEERR -
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—BLLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REYH
2008 2007
—BENF —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REA 49,034 -
Reclassified from leasehold MEEEFEHRSEMF15)
buildings (note 15) - 725
Reclassified from prepaid B A 2 TR R AT
lease payments on land EHE(HF16)
use rights (note 16) - 1,031
Reclassified to leasehold BN BERMEEEF(Mit15)
buildings (note 15) (18,497) -
Reclassified to prepaid lease BENSBEAFRAEIENBEONK
payments on land (Mist16)
use rights (note 16) (32,639) -
Elimination of subsidiaries I EHMT B A ) - (878)
Transfer from deposits for EBREEAEE T
acquisition of leasehold EREREFZE®
land use rights and buildings - 23,500
Fair value gains ~hEkRE - 21,967
Exchange realignment HNE 53 B 3,064 2,689
At end of the year NG 962 49,034
The investment properties of the Group are situated outside AEE 2 HEYMFRURF BTSN - W AT HH

Hong Kong and held under medium term leases. They are held
for rental purposes or undetermined use under operating leases.
The investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31

December 2008 on the open market existing use basis by Asset

Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH

HEA ARREEREBR TREBRES SR
REMERE - AEBEZREVER-_FTEN
FT_A=T—"Bh—HBLEX[ERA
BEFEERAFTNRARMBSREERELEL

TEf -

93



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

18. GOODWILL 18. &
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2007 RZZETELF— 384,095
Arising from increase of investments A M B A 7 Z?xéfi‘ ﬂﬂﬁﬁ?‘i
in subsidiaries 333,658
Elimination of subsidiaries (note 44) B B A R (A iE44) (122,396)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZLF+-A=1T—H 595,357
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEM B AR FFEL
(note 43) (H1it43) 237,948
Arising from increase of investments ~ RHIB AR 2 HEEINTEE
in subsidiaries 645,717
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+=-A=+—H 1,479,022

The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill arising
from acquisition/increase in investments of lottery business.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising
from acquisition/increase in investments of lottery business
by reference to the cash-generating units’ value in use and
determined that such goodwill has not been impaired. The
recoverable amount for the cash-generating units in relation
to the lottery business was determined based on value—in-use
calculations, which use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering the operation
period of the business with a discount of 10%. The discount
rate used reflects specific risks relating to the business and the
growth rate is in line with the forecasts adopted by the industry.

The goodwill is included in the lottery business segment
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

AR ZEEERRKE ENRENTREES
FREEZREE -

BRAKEZEARR  AREC2RATE
HEEL 2 FREERT 4 E W, IR E N
EXBRELREZATREOSE  WETXA
BRARE BEREBERZRSELEN
ZAW Ol e DRERBEAEEMEE
HIDERRAAE R EREEBRLERN Y
ﬁfﬁgﬁ%/‘iziﬁiiﬁ%iﬁiﬂﬂ  RAER Z10%
c FIERZ MR X RREXB AR ITE
I—L A RIBRE N ATERMEM A -

BEORAEMBHRRMIMBE X EES
A e
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s i AR AT

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

9. BEEE

Deferred
Computer development Operating Technical
software costs right know-how Total
B B
B A e AR PIE S Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Cost ﬁﬂi
At 1 January 2007 R-EZT+F—F—H 7,977 9,414 - - 17,391
Additions NE - 2,737 29,947 - 32,684
Injection by the joint venturer A& FZA - - - 58,823 58,823
Exchange realignment IMNEFRE 589 695 - - 1,284
Elimination of subsidiaries B[N (2,781) (6,423) - - (9,204)
At 31 December 2007 —TTLEF
+-A=+—H 5,785 6,423 29,947 58,823 100,978
Arising on acquisition of WERBRARMES
subsidiaries (note 43) (Hi5t43) 3,396 - - - 3,396
Additions NE - 17,090 - - 17,090
Exchange realignment HNIE B 362 401 1,872 - 2,635
At 31 December 2008 R-EBBNE
+=ZA=+-H 9,543 23,914 31,819 58,823 124,099
Accumulated amortisation Rit#
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+F-A—H 3,190 2,256 - - 5,446
Exchange realignment SN B 319 323 - - 642
Charge for the year AEENR 880 1,129 - - 2,009
Elimination of subsidiaries HEMB AR (903) (1,854) - - (2,757)
At 31 December 2007 RZESLF
+=A=+-H 3,486 1,854 - - 5,340
Arising on acquisition of WERBRRMES
subsidiaries (note 43) (Hfi243) 113 - - - 113
Exchange realignment NE BB 218 116 - - 334
Charge for the year AEFMR 748 682 - - 1,430
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+=ZA=+-8 4,565 2,652 - - 7,217
Net book value RHRE
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZBENE
+=A=+-H 4,978 21,262 31,819 58,823 116,882
At 31 December 2007 RZZET+F
+-A=+—H 2,299 4,569 29,947 58,823 95,638
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Computer software of carrying value of approximately
HK$4,978,000 (2007: HK$2,299,000) is the intangible assets
acquired and possessed by the lottery business. The intangible
assets have definite useful lives and are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Deferred development costs of carrying value of approximately
HK$21,262,000 (2007: HK$4,569,000) represent expenditure
incurred by the Group on development of computer software
and related technology for the lottery business of the Group
in order to meet with the market development and the
specific requirements of the lottery business and its individual
customers. The Directors consider that the related software and
technology are technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
the development activities.

Operating right of carrying value of approximately
HK$31,819,000 (2007: HK$29,947,000) represents expenditure
incurred by the Group on obtaining an operating right in a
lottery centre. The Directors opined that the operating right is
with infinite useful life.

Technical know-how of carrying value of approximately
HK$58,823,000 (2007: HK$58,823,000) represents the
technology, technical information, know-how and experience
in relation to the lottery business. The Directors opined that the
technical know-how is with infinite useful life.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the
Group has assessed the recoverable amounts of the operating
right and the technical know-how based on value-in-use
calculations, which use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering the operation
period of the business with a discount of 10%. The discount
rate used reflects specific risks relating to the business and the
growth rate is in line with the forecasts adopted by the industry.

19.
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29,947,000 L) RAEBERFEHR LELE
BZEAFX EFRRLERERFHE
PR °

R E P A% AR E(E 4958,823,0008 L (=&
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—BLLFE

20. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LEASEHOLD LAND USE

21.

RIGHTS

The amount represents deposit paid to the relevant government
authority for acquisition of a medium term leasehold land
use rights in the PRC. The amount includes relevant deed tax
thereon capitalised. The relevant land use right certificate
is expected to be issued upon fully settlement of the
consideration. Further details are set out in note 37(a).

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, has a 50%
interest in a joint venture, Happy Sun Technologies Ltd and its
subsidiaries (together as “Happy Sun Group”). The following
amounts represent the Group’s 50% share of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2008, and sales and results of
the joint venture for the year. They are included in the Group’s
balance sheet and income statement as follows:

20.

21.

BAHELHEREZTE

ZemERWERBR P BEE L AEm
EXNTEEBN#EZTE ZeBaEE
BENM 2z BERAER - MHREEREREE
LHHEBA T ERED - PEBEHRME
37(a) °

REELENER
AEBZREEMNBARIBAAENE
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd &% E i B2 7] (4
7 [ Happy Sun®E B ]) 50%# % - T3l & 5
RAAEBLZAECER_TENF+ZA
=S+—HZBEREBE URAFEZHER
EENS0%ER - BEDBRAEBEERE
“RMEER T

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Assets BE
Non-current assets JERBNE E 95,900 78,156
Current assets MEEE 85,589 75,269
181,489 153,425

Liabilities =K
Non—current liabilities FEREEE 635 275
Current liabilities nEaE 4,488 1,717
5,123 1,992
Net assets EEFE 176,366 151,433

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

21. REEhENERS (B)

01.01.2008- 14.11.2007-

31.12.2008 31.12.2007

—EENE —TELF

—-A—HZ +—AtWmEZ®

—EENF —TTLF

+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Income A 54,440 6,446
Expenses i3 29,211 3,963
Profit before taxation B B B & 25,229 2,483
Taxation THIE 3,049 305
Profit after taxation B 1% 22,180 2,178

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the joint venture, and no contingent liabilities of the

venture itself.

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

AEBERGELERRVENRAGR MEE

CEAGTERRAE -

RZZZNFT_A=1+—8  AEERET
AR ERN D E R E D ERFENREMR

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: SHRBEOT
2008 2007
—EBENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings THRETF
Within one year —FR 555 685
In the second to fifth EEERF
year inclusive (BEBEREME) = 516
555 1,201
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—BLLFE

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 21. REELENER (B)
Details of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities, which RZZZENF+ZA=+—RH FEEZXE
are unlisted and limited liability companies, as at 31 December HEZEHEE(RIFELTRERTEERAR M
2008 are as follows: FEHT
Place of Principal Particulars of Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered interest
Name registration place of operation capital held
BB BRSZ o i 2 TEXBREERE EMERFE FEBERER
Happy Sun Technologies British Virgin Investment holding 4 ordinary shares 50%
Ltd Islands in the PRC of US$1 each
KERELHS R BUETIR EE R Al - BRREE
1ETZEBR
MEF BRI ERE PRC Investment holding UsD12,000,000 50%
(FRINERRT] i in the PRC 12,000,000 7T
R BETTIREER
IR R B R PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
BRAT i in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
A BETTIRE R
Beijing Guard Libang PRC Provision of systems RMB89,180,000 50%
Technology Co Ltd i and equipment in AR %89,180,0007T
R ERF R the lottery market
BRAT in the PRC
N BRI SR i3
B
22. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 22. EE®RSE

Statutory deposits are the deposits in various exchanges and
clearing houses relating to securities and futures dealing
businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

(i)

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

23. EIEH A
() BEIABELHBEEE (AR

Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease

payments on

Allowance for land use
impairment Other rights and Other
of loans deductible  buildingson  Revaluation taxable
and other temporary business of temporary
Tax losses receivables differences  combinations properties differences Total
ERAHER
1#fEREZ
BRREM RRRAAR
EYRERE AtTNE  REFHEZ EtERS
HBER ERER ERZR MERR Lk EREE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT FEr FEr
At 1 January 2007 RZE5t5-A-H 1,545 2,170 - (558) - (5,816) (2,659)
Exchange realignment SERZ - - - (73) - (764) (837)
(Charged)/credited to the EGARERN(XH) /A

consolidated income statement ()

(note 12) (1,545) (543) 1,109 N (3,226) (6,971) (11,176)
Elimination of subsiciaries HENEAT - - (625) - - - (625)
At 31 December 2007 RZERLET-A=1-A - 1627 484 (631) (3,226) (13,551) (15.297)
Attributable to change in taxrate  FiEXEEHE(

(note 12) (1) - 9) - - - - )
Exchange realignment MHERE - - 30 9 (424) (701) (1,104
Charged to the consolidated ERaRERAX

income statement (note 12) (W#12) - - (514) - - (28,934) (29,448)
At 31 December 2008 RZBBNETZA=t-H - 1,535 - (640) (3,650) (43,186) (45,941)
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

23. EERIE(B)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred REEABREIME BETERLEREEE
tax assets/(liabilities) have been offset in accordance with the (Eﬁ) Eiﬁ?ﬁ?‘ﬁ%@ﬁ’&ﬁw%1Zvﬁﬁﬁﬁ " 275
conditions set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of R EEABRZEEBIBESHITET ¢
deferred tax balances shown in the consolidated balance sheet:
2008 2007
—EETNF —ETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE (47,476) (17,408)
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 1,535 2,111
(45,941) (15,297)
(i)  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in (i ETCHBEE/(BAE)ITRXMRUATEE
respect of the following items: EITHER
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Taxable temporary ERTE R =R
differences
— accelerated tax —MRHIEE
depreciation - -
- others —H - (244)
Deductible temporary AREREER
differences
- decelerated tax —BRWIBNE
depreciation 3,615 3,394
— others —Ht 56,289 51,590
Tax losses W% EE 93,913 99,799
153,817 154,539
Notes: Biat -
1 The deductible temporary differences do not expire under 1 BERTHE  AINMAEREETTE

the current tax legislation.

2 Tax losses of approximately HK$4,596,000 (2007:
HK$4,008,000) arising from the Group’s lottery business in
the PRC would expire in the fifth year commencing from the
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately
HK$89,317,000 (2007: HK$95,791,000) arising from the
Group’s other business segments in Hong Kong do not
expire under the current tax legislation.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

24. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS 24. REFT=
The investment deposits represent the amounts paid for BETERNBRARZERENMZENS
acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries and are BOALSBERERDEE -

therefore classified as non—current assets.

25. INVENTORIES 25. 8

2008 2007
—ETN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials JR M # 50,235 46,317
Work-in-progress &M 11,219 1,326
Finished goods LR 18,221 3,972
79,675 51,615

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. EWE S EX
2008 2007
—EENF ZTELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Margin client receivables, net JE W FF R = P AR IEE AR 3,091 9,342
Other client receivables, net FEME MR P IRIE SR 675 1,510
Broker receivables FEW A 4D BR IR 945 17,378
Amounts due from clearing houses &Y 4% B FT AR I8 2,152 -
Loan receivables, net EWE T 196,370 283,219
Loan interest receivables, net JEUNE KA B FRE 8,008 12,211
Trade receivables-lottery business FEWE ZER - FREK 497,664 168,583
708,905 492,243
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26.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Margin client receivables are repayable on demand, bear
interest at prevailing market rates and are secured by clients’
securities listed on the Stock Exchange with market value of
approximately HK$12,895,000 as at 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$66,274,000). No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin
client receivables as, in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of
business of securities margin financing and broking.
The settlement terms of other client receivables, broker
receivables and amounts due from clearing houses are one to
two days after the trade date or are repayable on demand. The
age of these balances is within 30 days.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 120 days to its trade receivables.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of loan receivables, loan interest receivables,
net and trade receivables-lottery business is as follows:

26. EWWE R (E)

& W & 3K

As at 31 December 2008

CERERNEFELRERE 5K
R-—HREBORESITET :

R-ZZ2BNF+=HA=+—H

Trade

Loan receivables receivables-

and loan interest lottery
receivables, net business Total

EBRERR EWES
ERERFNEFE BRR-EREHR &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET F#ET
Three months or less =@EAAT 99,454 470,865 570,319
One year or less but over three months —F A ME={EA A E 101,221 18,556 119,777
Over one year —FAE 3,703 8,243 11,946
204,378 497,664 702,042

As at 31 December 2007
RZZEZ+HF+-_A=+—H

Trade

Loan receivables receivables-

and loan interest lottery
receivables, net business Total

EHER R EKES
EREFFEFE BR-EREH CEl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FETT T
Three months or less @A 234,461 144,444 378,905
One year or less but over three months —F A ME={EA A E 60,969 24,139 85,108
295,430 168,583 464,013
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—BILtFE

26.

As of 31 December 2008, trade receivables of approximately
HK$79,672,000 (2007: HK$84,368,000) were impaired. The
amount of the allowance for impairment was HK$79,085,000
as of 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$74,363,000). It is assessed
that a portion of these receivables is expected to be recovered.
The ageing analysis of these impaired receivables is as follows:

FEWE 5 R ()

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—08 BREZEXK
%’779 672, ooo,mz (_ 2ges ti 84,368,000

ORERER IE7%79 085, 000/%75( i?
ti : 74,363,000/ 7T) © &L 5T {4 1% TE BAER 1
FEWGRIR G AT R E o 3% 5 FE W SR IBR (B BR ik 7

franT

2008 2007
ZEENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

One year or less but over BE—FHUAT
three months past due BiEm=1EA - 1,033
Over one year past due BRI —F 79,672 83,335
79,672 84,368

As of 31 December 2008, trade receivables of approximately
HK$20,558,000 (2007: HK$32,437,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers

RZBEENF+_A=+—H EREZEZFEX
#920,558,000/ 7T (Z T &+ 4 : 32,437,000
BIT) EREEY RIFE - %Z%Bﬁf‘%ﬁé%1

for whom there is no recent history of default. All trade RIZSTR R 3 St »3: 0k - AV AT LF

receivables that were past due in 2007 have been settled during BB REKE SRS i’jaﬁ/\— ETNF
2008. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: AU Bl - 3% R FRIE BR T

2008 2007

—EENF —ETAF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FHET

Three months or less past due BHE=EASKAT 8,100 8,193

One year or less but over BE—FHAT
three months past due 2B =18 A 12,458 24,244
20,558 32,437

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables

are neither past due nor impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts are as follows:

26.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

FEWE SR (&)
RZFERERBESHOT

2008 2007

“EENE —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January ®n—H—H 74,363 91,903

Exchange realignment HINE 58 B 83 91

Impairment losses recognised ERANEERE 44,610 570

Uncollectible amount written off 7~ 8] [g] Uy 2% I8 $ifl (39,971) (741)

Impairment losses written back R 1B & 18 7 Bl = (17,460)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 79,085 74,363

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally STARBEER B 2 I — MR TR B AT Uk B gE A
written off when there is no expectation of recovering WE R o

additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.

B 5 bl & FE MR IR SR

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. AR e R EMEKRRE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments, deposits BER - Ee2k
and other receivables, net H ) e U SR TE R B 401,556 332,311

As of 31 December 2008, other receivables of approximately
HK$10,970,000 (2007: HK$9,966,000) were impaired. The
amount of the allowance for impairment was approximately
December 2008 (2007:

HK$10,970,000 as of 31
HK$9,966,000).

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor

impaired.

R_EZENF+_A=+—8 " EMbEKR

1 %710,970,0008 T (ZEZ L F ¢ 9,966,000
BT EHEE R-_EENE+-_A=+—
B REBERIEAL10,970,0008 T (=&
T4 :9,966,00087T) °

EERE MAEMANR  EEREMEK
MIRR BB E BRIE -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27.

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLLFE

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

AR - ZEREMBEWRREE)

RIERZBMERBEESHIT

doubtful debts are as follows:

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January mn—H—H 9,966 9,234
Exchange realignment SN 3 2 619 682
Impairment losses recognised EERREEE 385 50
At 31 December KR+ZRA=+—H 10,970 9,966
28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 28. BREREAAREFEZERMEE
LOSS

2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Listed securities held for trading: #HEMEBEZ EMHES

Market value of equity securities  &BE ETMREEF

listed in Hong Kong Z A 9,311 30,072

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current

bid prices in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within the section of operating activities as part of changes in

working capital in the cash flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other (losses)/gains, net in the

income statement (note 5).
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HEZE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 29. RERMWITHEER
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at banks RITH S
— general accounts -—REBF 224,894 656,290
- segregated accounts —BMYBRF 18,419 31,539
Cash in hand FERS 730 1,513
244,043 689,342
Cash and bank balances include the following amounts RekBEeSEYH  BETIERRARINEE
denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional ¥ OB T) AINE B S E R AR -
currency, HK dollars:
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
Malaysian Ringgits B 90 122
US dollars ET 32 7,513
Renminbi AR 110,185 73,725
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the B RESEEYEETISBEERSRESR
purposes of the cash flow statement: MRS
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash in hand FHEES 730 1,513
Cash at banks RITH S
— general accounts ——RERF 224,894 656,290
Bank overdrafts (note 34) RITEZ (B17#34) (1,026) (139)
224,598 657,664
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Number of shares Amount
g = |
Notes ‘000 HK$'000
g3 FiR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEIVIBTZEER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 R_ZZ+F—H—H -
and 31 December 2008 TRt F+ZA=+—AK
—EENF+_A=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
At 1 January 2007 RNZZEZE+F—H—H 5,917,000 59,170
Exercise of share options TR E 273,000 2,730
Issue of consideration shares BIIRERD 300,000 3,000
Issue of subscription shares BITRBRG 648,000 6,480
At 31 December 2007 RZZETLFE+-A=+—H 7,138,000 71,380
Exercise of share options TIEERE (a 20,000 200
Issue of consideration shares BITRERD (b) 254,000 2,540
Cancellation upon repurchase 88 [ 7R & IR 1) B ok 8
of own shares (c) (15,825) (158)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZZENF+=A=+—-8H 7,396,175 73,962

Notes:

Wit -

R—ZZT )\ FE— A 20,000,000 i % & %

In January 2008, 20,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.79 each, resulting in an issue of
20,000,000 shares, for a total consideration (before expenses) of
HK$15,800,000.

In June 2008, 254,000,000 consideration shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued at a price of approximately HK$1.4173 each to an
independent third party. The value of shares issued was to settle
part of the consideration of a further acquisition of an existing
subsidiary.

During the year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of
15,825,000 own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange and
these repurchased shares were cancelled prior to 31 December
2008. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the nominal value of these repurchased shares in the amount
of HK$158,250 and the equivalent amount was transferred
from retained profit to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium paid on the repurchase of these shares in the amount
of HK$2,399,157 was charged to share premium. The aggregate
consideration to repurchase these shares in the amount of
HK$2,557,407 was deducted from shareholders’ equity.
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92 #AR(E2,577,407 8 TR IR EZE P K ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 22 November 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of enabling the Group to grant share options to
executives and employees of the Group and other persons who
have made contributions to the Group as incentives and/or

rewards for their contributions to the Group or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the Scheme
to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine. Share options granted should be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Group by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, save that such price will not be less than the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Group on the
date of approval and adoption of the Scheme provided that
the Group may at any time seek approval from its shareholders
to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under
any share option scheme(s) of the Group (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised share options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Group’s issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Group’s shareholders.

31.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

31. BRESE(E)
EEen2ENERTEHEREZITHEER -

The period during which share options may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share options can be exercised more than 10 years after they
have been granted. There is no general requirement that share

options must be held for any minimum period before they can
be exercised. The Scheme will expire on 22 November 2012.

The following table discloses movements in the Share Option

Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2008:

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—HBLLFE

BROBREAMEF T FRAUTEZBK
- BRTERREM VAR ERRE ZRE

HAPBR 3 S AE A — ARIRE ©

F+—A=Z+=HER°

TRIREB RS

ZrrEER =T —=

BE-_ZZEN\E+=-A=+—HLEE:

Number of share options
EREHE
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees grant options share period 01.01.2008 year year the year the year the year  31.12.2008
RZZBBNE RZBENE
EhE -A-B  EREBRR  FAEHE t-A=t-H
BEA REBH  SRORE 8 HATE Bt EH B ER EREL Rl EREH HATE
HKS
Er
Employees 06.07.2006 0.295 13.07.2006- 36,000,000 - - - - - 36,000,000
[E8 12.07.2009
20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007- 56,000,000 - - - (20,000,000) - 36,000,000
08.07.2010
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007- 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
07.08.2010 (Note)
(i)
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008- - - - 159,000,000 - - 159,000,000
30.10.2011
Other eligible 25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007- 10,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - - 5,000,000
participants 07.08.2010 (Note)
EftaEHaaE Wit)
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008- - - - 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
30.10.2011
107,000,000 5,000,000  (5000,000) 199,000,000  (20,000,000) - 286,000,000
Note: Wit

The share options were held by an eligible participant who became an

employee of the Group during the year. Such share options were re-classified
from the category of “Other eligible participants” to “Employees” during the

year accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2007:

31. BRESE(E)
BE-FE+ET-A=+—RLEE:

Number of share options

BiREsE
Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period 01.01.2007 the year the year the year ~ 31.12.2007
RZZE+F RIZZ+E
BvE —A—H TZA=+-H
EEA -l =p BRRE i AR FRRE AR FRRR EAOR
HK$
BT
Employees 26.09.2005 0.102 26.10.2005- 30,000,000 - (30,000,000 - -
B8 25.10.2015
06.07.2006 0.295 13.07.2006- 73,000,000 - (37,000,000) - 36,000,000
12.07.2009
20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007- - 60,000,000  (4,000,000) - 56,000,000
08.07.2010
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007- - 53,000,000 (48,000,000) - 5,000,000
07.08.2010
Other eligible 11.12.2003 0.138 03.01.2004- 28,000,000 - (28,000,000) - -
participants 02.01.2014
EftagR2 8L
06.07.2006 0.295 13.07.2006- 78,000,000 - (78,000,000) - -
12.07.2009
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007- - 58,000,000 (48,000,000) - 10,000,000
07.08.2010
209,000,000 171,000,000 (273,000,000) - 107,000,000
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31.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—HBLLFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Notes:

(1) The closing price of the share immediately before the date of
grant on 14 October 2008 was HK$0.285.

(2) Details of the share options exercised during the year are as
follows:

31. BRESE(E)

At -

(1) ZERHEAH M-S \E+A+WNBERTZ
f&{p U T {8 50.285%8 T ©

(2 FRITEERBEFBELT

Closing price

immediately

Exercise price Number of before
per share Exercise date share exercised exercise date
BETEAHA

BRITEE TERH BRPTHE HEZKWTHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0.790 14.01.2008 20,000,000 1.260

(3)  No option was cancelled during the year.

During the year, 199,000,000 (2007: 171,000,000) share
options were granted under the share option scheme to
grantees for an aggregate consideration of HK$13 (2007:
HK$7).

The exercise in full of the outstanding 286,000,000 share
options at 31 December 2008 would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 286,000,000
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$115,710,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, 199,000,000
options were granted on 31 October 2008 and are fully vested
at the same date. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on this date are HK$2,212,000.
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JL) °

BERARB 2 BREERER BHEHITHER
TEENEF+ A=+ —BHEARTEZ
286,000,00017 i I 4 1% B £ 3 17286,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRERE(E)
The fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing AABEDNERATA AR — FRREEERG
model. The weighted average inputs into the model were as H oo R 2 METFHEENT
follows:
Share options granted
R ERE
Date of Date of Date of Date of
offer to offer to offer to offer to
grant option grant option grant option grant option
31.10.2008 25.07.2007 20.06.2007 20.06.2007
B R g ey eyl
BB K HH B HH B
R=ZENF R_TTLF RZZETLF RZZTELF
+A=+—-8 +tA=-+AH ~AZ+H ~NAZ=+AR
Share price IR E HK$0.300/ 7t  HK$1.130/87C  HK$0.79087t  HK$0.79075 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.3008 7t  HK$1.130/87c  HK$0.790/87L  HK$0.790%8 7T
Expected volatility JE K 1R 73.21% 63.60% 64.82% 64.82%
Expected option life TE BR B AR 1 A
(in years) (BF5T) 1 0.3 0.5 0.1
Risk-free-rate = 2 fa ) 0.59 3.83 3.89 3.74
Expected dividends TEHRE 0% 0% 0% 0%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
two years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$2,212,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$24,867,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company, of which
approximately HK$1,768,000 (2007: HK$19,057,000) are
recorded in staff costs (note 7).

TEHIRIE T E A AR R R ERBEME KR
BE - ZEAMAZESFRIVREBEEREZ
BETRAATEREN  TERGRITAZEZY

EmnE-

RBE_ZTENFF+_A=+—HLEFE"
AEBEHARABRE s BERERRE H
2,212,000 7t (ZZEZ £ F : 24,867,000/%
L) Z2FE  Hdh 491,768,000 (T T+
% 119,057,000/ 70) Jhai 8k AR B A AN (P 5%
7)

TRADE PAYABLES 32. ERNESZRN
2008 2007
ZEENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Margin client payables ERNAFREPENR 5,341 4,365
Other client payables JRE A~ EL 4 % P BR R 15,174 44,879
Trade payables-lottery business ERNESER—FHEEB 133,365 54,804
153,880 104,048
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33.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #(E

BB RMBE(R)

ZEEN\EFT AT RALERE

32. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 32. EREZERM(E)
Margin client payables and other client payables are repayable ERNAFREPFIBRENEME P FIBTIRE
on demand and bear interest at prevailing market rates. SKIFER - WARITHISA R B o
No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin client payables and HREFRRMAREF;NEEBRBLES
other client payables as, in the opinion of the Directors, the MEME - RESMEETK - B AR
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the FEHHE%JEEE K FETE M R P AR AR 2 AR ER
nature of business of securities margin financing and broking. DHTER -
Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are ENEZERERARFAL N RIZEREE
repayable on demand. -F o
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade EERRENEFREFCREBERE QL EME
payables approximate to their fair values. o
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables-lottery TEBEENE SRR - HEEB ZRE DT
business is as follows: T
2008 2007
ZEENFE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Three months or less “EAKAT 130,690 42,509
One year or less but over —FHUAT
three months B=MEAMKE 2,675 12,295
133,365 54,804
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. Htt e RIE R B ROR
Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled or Hab T RBE R ERTRETEER —FAEER

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITER
2008 2007
ZEENE ZETLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Bank overdrafts RITBEX
- secured — B 1,026 -
— unsecured — fE - 139
Bank loan WITEK
— secured — B 13,132 13,917
14,158 14,056
These borrowings are used to finance the lottery and money ZEERDAEBRNASEE 2 X ERERE
lending business of the Group. % e
As at 31 December 2008, the bank overdraft was secured by RZBEZENF+_A=+—H ROTEIUR
clients’ securities amounting to HK$2,856,000 (2007: Nil). F#&%2,856,0008 T (ZEZ+F : &) (FE
o
Bank loan of approximately HK$13,132,000 was secured by the #913,132,0008 L 2 RITERUAEE 2 HE
leasehold buildings and land use rights of the Group. BF R AREERA -
As at 31 December 2007, bank borrowing of approximately RZEEEFF+ZA=+—H  RITEHRL
HK$13,917,000 was secured by the investment properties of 13,917,000/aTELAZIS%@Z&Q\%%VF?EW °
the Group.
The effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are equal REBERZEBRFETHEREGLHNE -
to contractual interest rates.
The Directors consider that the fair values of bank borrowings EERAE BOTBERZARERAEREM
at the balance sheet date approximate to their carrying e
amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

34. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 34. BITER(E)

The maturity of borrowings is as follows: BIHRE T ¢
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 2,351 1,381
Between one and two years —EMF 1,325 1,251
Between two and five years MERF 3,975 3,704
Wholly repayable within five years RAFABE(EE 7,651 6,336
Over five years HEDF 6,507 7,720
14,158 14,056

The bank overdraft carried interest at either HIBOR or Prime
Rate (2007: HIBOR or Prime Rate). The effective interest rates
for bank loans are ranging from 5.94% to 7.83% per annum

(2007: 6.84% to 7.83%).

Bank borrowings include the following amount denominated in
a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK

BB NIERRAZEFRMA ERRHEEF
E(ZEELF: fﬁ?ﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁiw@%
FR)FE -RITERZEBFNEZENT
5.94%i7.83%a+,% (_EE%Eti 1 6.84% %
7.83%) °

RITERBETIARR BT (BT) A
SNEEDIE 2 A

dollars:
2008 2007
—EETNF —ETLHF
‘000 000
Fr Fr
Renminbi AR¥ 11,556 13,014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 35. RIKEFRIFHE

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
Social Security Bureau in respect of the retirement benefit
for the PRC subsidiaries’ employees in the PRC.

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service payment as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED
At 31 December 2008, the Group has not given any significant
financial guarantees (2007: Nil).

(a)

(b)

BABRRE
AEBERERHEAERTEGD - RE
BREBERZERBHIMEAESRIKEF
AEl(MeEEstE)2RE  RH—1&
RPN ZAESAE - FEHZ KT
REBHZZANLAHE  UKRBES
FREIZ R ERGMERFERERTN
B o ARBEBURESFEFL 2 BEH
REHREEMA -

RIBERPBIER - FEMELRART
BREEZERKENAABLERERA
B2 EREFURARET EMEL K -

EEHES
BEREZFBRERARBSINET
BERER URBEHERREERMRE
HREMEEZEAFBRERARE S
BEELAEE -

BEERERBRED B HIEERENRIN
REAE I8 THERR -

36. BRHZBEER

R-ZZENE+-_A=+—08 A&EETES
AMBER(ZEELE - HE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—_ZZTN\F+_A=1+—HBLLFE

37. COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008

37. KiE

(@ RZEZNFE+_A=+—-—BAERFA

not provided for in the financial statements were as MR 2 RENEREENOT
follows:
2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FET FEr
Contracted for BET4
— purchase of leasehold -RBERES L FEAE
land use rights (note 1) (Hat1) 22,358 -
— purchase of property, plant —BEBEWE - HEX
and equipment Bl - 2,597
— increase in interests in —-RHBRR 2 EE=
subsidiaries (note 2) gmkriz) - 515,000
22,358 517,597

Notes:

M

On 24 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire a medium term leasehold land use rights in the
PRC for a consideration of RMB21,775,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,744,000), of which RMB2,100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,386,000) was paid
to the relevant government authority at the balance
sheet date and had been recognised as “Deposit for
acquisition of leasehold land use rights” in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, resulting in a
capital commitment of RMB19,675,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,358,000). The relevant land use right
certificate is expected to be issued upon fully settlement of
the consideration.

The commitments in respect of increase in interests in
subsidiaries included HK$155,000,000 to be satisfied by
payments in cash and HK$360,000,000 to be satisfied by
issue of consideration shares by the Company.
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EABERABRAWEEE LmER
B2zalel RMSIBEAEREARE
19,675,0007T (49 #8 % 722,358,000
TL) c TEHIR G ERER B EREM L
= AEE -

BN E QRSN 2 A ERER
AR AZE & 5 2155,000,0005%8 7T 2 fiF
KRB ITRE R 2 14.2360,000,000
I ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

37. COMMITMENTS (continued) 37. &¥E(H)
(b) At 31 December 2008, the Group’s future aggregate by WZZEZENF+_A=+—H AEER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating BARTRUEEE SO 2 RREN KA
leases are payable as follows: RETEOT
2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$°'000
FET FEr
Land and buildings T REF

Within one year —FR 13,841 3,673
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFENF (REEEMF) 20,089 423
33,930 4,096
The Group leases office premises under operating leases. AEBREBLCERNHEARAE  MxE
The leases run for an initial period of one to three years. HOMTREB—Z=F1%  WABER

The leases do not include any contingent rentals. Ak AEE -

120
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILtFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 38. REAE S ZEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER SRS TAZRABENT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Financial assets SMEE
2008 2007
“BENE 8 3
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
profit or profit or
loss - held  Loans and loss - held Loans and
for trading  receivables Total  fortrading  receivables Total
BREH mhEs
BRAREHE BRALEE
WeRmEE- ERR MEREE- Bk
BEFEE  EUWRE @ RAKEE  RUSE @t
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
hit TEx TEx TErx TET AT AL
Statutory deposits EERE 22 = 632 632 - 2,178 2,178
Investment deposits RETE 24 - 126,000 126,000 - 168,620 168,620
Trade receivables ERESER 26 - 708,905 708,905 - 492,243 492,243
Prepayments, deposits BAR ZeREM
and other receivables FEYE 27 - 401,556 401,556 - 332,311 332,311
Financial assets at fair BBERELAENE
value through profit LEREE
or loss 28 9,311 - 9,311 30,072 - 30,072
Cash and bank balances BeREMER 29 - 244,043 244,043 - 689,342 689,342

9,311 1,481,136 1,490,447 30,072 1,684,694 1,714,766

Financial liabilities EA- 3=
2008 2007
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
—EENE —ETLF
REHERATE RBHEKETE
ZEWMEE ZEMARE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
H st FAET FET
Bank borrowings RITER 34 14,158 14,056
Trade payables JERT & SR 32 153,880 104,048
Other payables and accruals EM A RIE R ER B 33 55,019 21,498
223,057 139,602
121
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

(a)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group'’s overall
risk management programme focus on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance as

follows:

(i) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to receivables from foreign brokers
and foreign currency deposits with banks. The
Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the above
receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
if HK$ had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the RMB, with all other variables
held constant, the effect on the profit for
the year is immaterial, equity would have
been approximately HK$35,118,000 (2007:
HK$20,906,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating
investments in foreign operations into HK$.

39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILtFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)

(1)

@)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
balance sheet date. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for 2007.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
regularly to ensure that the underlying risk is
monitored within an acceptable range. Most
of the Group's interest bearing assets and
liabilities are on a floating rate basis with
maturity of one year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
treasury and operating activities. Interest rate
risk arises in treasury management, customer
financing and investment portfolios. Interest
rate risk primarily results from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to the bank borrowings carried interest
at variable rates which are collateralised
by margin client’s securities and leasehold
buildings and land use rights to mitigate the
cash flow interest risk.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 0.1% and
1% in interest rates of the PRC and of Hong
Kong respectively, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease profit
for the year and increase/decrease retained
profits by approximately HK$3,415,000 (2007:
HK$887,000).

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FEH

39. iIERERE(E)

(a) MBEABEE (&)
(i) HEmkE(E)
(1) SMEREE (&)

2)

VA £ BURKE 9 AT R A% OB R
BEANEREANREZAT
fER SR T AAT S| A INER
B o 5%IB MR D ABEERET
HBEEET—EABFLAE A
f A M A Al fE IR FIl &= &
- BREENSME=-ZZ
CEEREHET -

HERFFERIAEFFER
AN S B T B ES YR T B 2 B R A
i LA TE IR 5 8 =L B g 12 ) 0 7]
BEEKFZA - Zlié‘%lkﬁﬂn
Ei%wgﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ\%ﬁ $=
RIFBAE  MEMMAR— ¢
AT o

REENFERHARE AIER
EBEEEE o A EER AR
BRIEEE XFPREMEE
HE -FEXEBEZERZHTE
BE ABERRETLBHEEN
RNEMN TEEBARER
2 REREEBFR L HER
%f’ﬂﬁﬁZﬁETﬂﬁﬁ " LAA]
FEE B - Ml FEE 2R
FEER -

R_ZEENEF+_A=Z+—

A 25 HEMEHEFTTEZ
ERT  FEREEZFES
R0,/ 40.1% B 1% & 5]
BURFERFEN RO RER
FTESIBE N, R4 493,415,000
I (ZE T4 : 887,000
JL) °

123



124

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(i)

Market risk (continued)

(2) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(continued)
The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 0.1% and 1% increase or
decrease in the PRC and Hong Kong interest
rate respectively represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

(3)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through investments in equity securities and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.
The Board of directors manages the exposure
by closely monitoring the portfolio of equity
investments. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the Group
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits
set by the Group. The Group did not have
significant exposure to price risk during the
current and prior years.

(ii) Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the clients’ and brokers’ failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 December 2008 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible to compile the credit
and risk management policies, to approve credit
limits and determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivable at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate allowances for impairment are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the directors of the Group consider that
the Group’s credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 34% (2007: 51%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the five
largest clients.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are set out in notes 26 and 27.

Liquidity risk

As part of ordinary broking activities, the Group
is exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing
difference between settlement with Clearing
House or brokers and clients. To address the
risk, management is responsible for its own cash
management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
management when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with regulatory requirements,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meets its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
non-derivatives financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

39. iIERERE(E)

(a)

MBEBREE (&)
(i) RBELmE (&)

AEENBRREMERE R
THEREEEREZEIT AR
REFEHRCHEBNERSAHE
BEMNATES MBI EZS KIS
RERMHAGRERE  AENERE
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My

|/

2008
“2BNE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but less but less than More than
amount cash flows demand than 2 years 5 years 5 years
B
g ) —FRE —FHE BRmE
REE WRERE RERER BEMER BEEEFR BBLE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tz Tz TET FAET FAET
Trade payables E{$E S8 153,880 153,880 153,880 - - -
Other payables 18
and accruals  RIEFTHIE 55,019 55,019 55,019 - - -
Bank RITEH
borrowings 14,158 16,402 2,139 2,139 6,418 5,706

223,057 225,301

126

211,038

2,139 6,418 5,706
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

39. iIERERE(E)

(a)

MBEBREE (&)
(i) RBELmE (&)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used
for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values of receivables and of payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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2007
ZTEHE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted or on but less but less More than
amount cash flows demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
Bi#)
fIREER —ERH —FNE BRmE
REE MEERE BREFXER BEMER BERFA BRREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FiET FEx FEr
Trade payables BB HER 104,048 104,048 104,048 - - -
Other payables HAfE(IFE
and accruals  REEFTHIE 21,498 21,498 21,498 - - -
Bank RITER
borrowings 14,056 19,111 2,260 2,260 6,665 7,926
139,602 144,657 127,806 2,260 6,665 7,926
(b) Fair value estimation (b) DAREME

HEBTHEBECHMBTAZARE R
BHEERZTSREMER - ~AKEKE
ZERMEBEECTSBERERZBEE -

WAREERMEBEEZSRTARAAE
MAGERMTMES - AEEFHAZES
5&]‘1*&#%%?5%@&2%%%{&5
ZIERE - MBREXZZHERBEUTAR
ZHRETEARRSBEE - Ha 10 (5
WEETEBEIRIR SR DARETEM e
TEZRARE-

EWER L ENERZ FAERKER
AREZEEBH - AEBEENMES2S
rﬁﬂé%ZQmﬁ’ FRARE BB RN
BIAMEEZERMSMELZRRA
4938 & m AL IR MG ET -

127



128

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines debts as total debts
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables plus unaccrued proposed dividends).
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, other than
amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges, less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2007, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a
reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

40.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBLLFE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2008 and

2007 were as follows:

40. EXERERE ()

RIZEZRNFR-_ZZLF+-_A=+—HZ
REABRABEEARLETFENT

2008 2007
o e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Current liabilities: REEE
Trade payables FER B 5 BR5K 153,880 104,048
Other payables and accruals Ho A [ A5 5018 & FE AT 3R IE 55,019 21,498
Bank borrowings BITER 2,351 1,381
211,250 126,927
Non-current liabilities: FHRBEE -
Bank borrowings RITER 11,807 12,675
Total debts fRIRMEER 223,057 139,602
Adjusted capital RABREXR 3,060,555 2,441,403
Net debt-to-adjusted RAREBEARLRFEE
capital ratio 7% 6%
Certain subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital ETHBARERBEEERESFRAEKL ([F
requirements in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and HREEGRD]) BTN ER 2 ERBRE - M
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and their respective liquid capital RZBZENF+ A=+ ARESERDE

as at 31 December 2008 is in compliance with the stipulated

liquidity requirement imposed by the SFO.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

41.

42.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(@) Details of the Group's significant transactions with the
following related parties during the year are as follows:

41.

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

BEALRS
(@) AEERAFECERATHEEALET
BERRH AR MT

2008 2007
—EENF ZTELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FEr
Associates of Directors: BEEsBMEAL:
Commission and interest BERERFEF
income arising from FiEHe Rk
futures and securities FEWA
trading 20 219

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group's ordinary course of business
and at terms agreed by both parties.

(b) During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents directors’ remuneration, as stated
in note 10. The directors’ remuneration is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance, responsibilities and experience of individuals
and market trends.

ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In April 2008, the Group acquired additional 26% equity
interest of Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd (“Kingsail”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its minority
shareholders at a consideration of HK$75,000,000 by way
of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition, Kingsail has
become an 84% owned subsidiary of the Group.

In June 2008, the Group acquired additional 20% equity
interest of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its minority
shareholders at a consideration of HK$600,000,000 which
was satisfied as to HK$240,000,000 by way of cash and
HK$360,000,000 by issuing 254,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the issue price of approximately HK$1.4173 per
share. As a result of the additional acquisition, Sinodata has
become an 84.75% owned subsidiary of the Group.

42.

Ex (BREBUFNTESRS)RA Lt
RETIRAKREARXRBBRETFRES
R ARTRAETT ©

(b) MEMFFA TEEBASHEENT
AN ZEEME EFEMEmFME
BE2REARR  BEREBULRTS

BEE -

fe
3¢ o

AB AT 28I ER

RZZFENFWA AEERESHEZRE
WHEAEEIIEEZEHBRREYIT S W E M+
BT ARAR ([£])Z8IN6%MHE - REA
75,000,000/ 7T * MIRE&F AL - HRLLEE
SNIEE - SN AREBEB4%EZ 2 B

AR

RZZBENFERA AEEREDEBERKRE
WA EEZIEREWB R RYIT B EEE
BMAERAR ([BE]) 2ZEIN20%KHE - KE
/600,000,000 7T + E#1240,000,000/% 7T A
I8 4 14 5% 360,000,000/ AR B ITBHF
f%1.41737 L3 17254,000,000/% /& 2 &) X 18
AR o AR BLEEINREE - B AR E
EHEE84.75% w2 B AT -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FE##



REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT

42.

43.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

In August 2007, the Group acquired 18.94% equity interest
of Sinodata, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
from its minority shareholders at an aggregate consideration
of HK$235,250,000 which was satisfied as to HK$25,250,000
by way of cash and HK$210,000,000 by issuing 300,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the issue price of HK$0.7
per share. As a result of the additional acquisition, Sinodata has
become a 64.75% owned subsidiary of the Group.

In October 2007, the Group acquired 30% equity interest of
Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group from its minority
shareholder at a consideration of US dollar equivalent of
RMB120,000,000 by way of cash. As a result of the additional
acquisition, Guard Libang has become a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group.

ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES

(i) Guangzhou Latech Technology Co Ltd (“Guangzhou
Latech”)
In April 2008, the Group acquired 90% of interest of the
Guangzhou Latech for a consideration of RMB80,600,000.
Guangzhou Latech is engaged in the development and
production of sports lottery machines, related operation
software and networks (including the provision of
incidental consultancy services) for the sports lottery
industry in the PRC.

(ii) Beijing Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd (“Beijing

Lohowin")

In July 2008, the Group initiated a new lottery business
- distribution & marketing business by investing
RMB30,000,000 to acquire 60% interest of registered
capital of Beijing Lohowin. The principal activities of
Beijing Lohowin is distribution and marketing of lottery
products in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLFE

43. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)
(iii) Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd

(“Beijing Xinan")

In November 2008, the Group set up a lottery printing
operation as a cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang
Offset Printing House, one of the three entities authorised
printing house for the Welfare Scratch Cards in China,
through Beijing Xinan. Investment made up to the end of
the financial year 2008 was HK$120,000,000. The Group
is in the process of upgrading by bringing in advance
printing press and increasing the capacity of the plant.

The above acquired businesses contributed turnover of
approximately HK$236,811,000 and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2008 of HK$22,810,000 to the
Group. If the above acquired businesses had occurred on
1 January 2008, the Group's turnover would have been
approximately HK$1,180,812,000, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 would have been approximately
HK$273,643,000.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1% s iZ BAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

43. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued) 43, IWBEEXEK (8)
Details of the assets and liabilities acquired are as follows: WIENEEMBESBEET :
Acquirees’ fair
value
WWBEAAEER
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M et FAET FET
Assets/(liabilities) acquired WEEE/(AfE)

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « BE MR 15 958 -
Intangible assets EREE 19 3,283 -
Inventories FE 3,599 -
Trade receivables EUE 5 IR 3,247 -
Other receivables H i FE USRI 17,002 -
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHEH 2,357 -
Trade payables ERE SRR (9,170) -
Other payables and accruals MR R R BT RIE (9,331) -
Minority interests DEIRRE R (488) -
11,457 -
Goodwill on acquisition WBEEZEHE 18 237,948 -

Consideration payable and M E R REEKES
related expenses after RITEREZEHNRE
deducting bank borrowings RBEBRX
of the acquirees assured
by the acquirers 249,405 -

Total investments and related 421X B R AR X
expenses satisfied by: PRNIESEERNE
Cash paid BENES 249,405 -

Net cash outflow in respect of WEEEZIREL R

the acquisition is analysed FEOMMT

as follows:
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHEH 2,357 -
Cash paid ENEE (249,405) -

(247,048) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

44. ELIMINATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

45.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Genius Nation
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Scientific
Games Corporation on 14 November 2007, the Group has
agreed to dispose of 50% equity interest in Happy Sun Group,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, at a consideration
of RMB210,000,000. As a result of the disposal, Happy Sun

44. HEHKE A R
RIEARNEE 2 2 &K B2 FGenius Nation
Limited#3Scientific Games Corporationi® —Z=
ZHFE+—-—ATHAYZHE AKXEE
Z H EHappy SUnEES0% 2 #E c REAA
K #210,000,000c 2 ET e - BRHE

Happy SUn&EEH=F YtEJr A-+mAH

Group ceased to be accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group BEFIERAEBERBAR  HERAEGERE -
commencing from 14 November 2007, but was accounted for Happy Suns£ B R H &R HﬂZﬁF%%@WT
as a joint venture. The net assets of Happy Sun Group at the
date of disposal were as follows:
Note HK$'000
iz FET
Net assets disposal of LEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 20,286
Investment properties REME 1,756
Intangible assets EmEEE 12,894
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE B 1,250
Inventories FE 5,310
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 71 K H h FE UK 19,790
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHEH 7,580
Bank borrowings RITER (698)
Trade and other payables e 2 5 8RR B EAth JE A< RRIE (2,622)
Current tax liabilities EHNIEAR (300)
65,246
Transfer to interest in a joint ventures (50%) BELEMEERGO%) (32,623)
32,623
Reversal of goodwill RS e 18 122,396
Gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries BT A R ER D A 2 s 63,998
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BRE - UBREIH 219,017
Net cash inflow arising on disposal PEEEZHERAFHE
Cash consideration received WEZzReRE 219,017
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZRE MIRITE (3,790)
215,227

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

Part of the investment cost incurred for the acquisition of the
additional 20% interest of Sinodata as mentioned in note 42
was settled by issuing 254,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the issue price of approximately HK$1.4173 per
share, which amounted to HK$360,000,000. This constitutes a
major non-cash transaction.

45. EXFRERS
E U B EEIN0% B MEEZEDIERE
BN (FR B sEd42f i) IR BT B AR
1.41737 JT 3 17254,000,000/% A8 2 &) & 38 A%
7 (3#360,000,000/870) X+ - th AEKIE
HEXH o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILtFE

46. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative information has been restated to achieve a
consistent presentation as a result of the adoption of new/
revised HKFRS and the presentation of sale proceeds and related
cost of sales for sales of investments held for trading to reflect
the nature of sales of financial assets in a more appropriate
manner, the details of which are set out below.

In prior years, sale proceeds of investments held for trading
were presented in the consolidated income statement within
turnover and the related cost of sales were presented on the
face of the income statements.

In the current year, the Group changed its presentation of
turnover and cost of sales, as in the opinion of Directors, it is
more appropriate to present the gain/loss on investments held
for trading disposed of during the year on a net basis so as to
provide more relevant information in respect of the Group's
operations and to conform to market practices.

The effects of this change in presentation have been accounted
for retrospectively with comparative figures restated. The
specific line items affected are as follows:

46. LbEBEF
BRI BT BB BREEIRE
JIHEMSREMEEREIEEECREZE
BHERAN  UENEEE T ARBBEE SR
BEZHE  HRAMKEEEY - UEE -2
EWHRN - BEFHEEINDOT -

RBEFE  HEFEEREZHEMSHNA
DR ARERAZINEREREAN  ME
HER AT NKRERAZT -

RAFE  AEERSEEENEEREIZE
AR AESRE  RFEEEZIFAL
ECEBREEREZRG EEFEE B
KREELERAEREECHEERKFE
mimEf

WEINFTAZESH 2 ZEKEEPARR - MLt
RUFERLES - ZFEZHHERRNT

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$°'000

FET FEr

Decrease in turnover EEERD 10,193 21,991

Decrease in cost of trading of listed BE ET&EHKARD

securities 14,195 22,142
Net losses on disposal of financial assets at HEBBERIEZ BEift =

fair value through profit or loss WemEEBETRE 4,002 151

In addition, for the purpose of these financial statements, AN MU FHBREMS - BE_TTN\F

the presentation of consolidated income statement has been
changed to the format of classification of expenses by function
for the year ended 31 December 2008. Accordingly, certain
comparative figures of consolidated income statement have
been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

The above changes do not have any impact on the results and
financial position of the Group in respect of the current and
prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR RMKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HBZ_ZZNF+_A=+—HBILFE

47.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements as follows:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1

Improvements to HKFRSs

Presentation of Financial Statements 2

Borrowing costs ?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements 3

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation 2

Eligible Hedged Items 3

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate 2

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations 2

Business Combinations 3

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments ?

Operating Segments ?

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes °

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate 2

Hedges of a Net investment in a Foreign
Operation ®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners 3

Transfer of Assets from Customers ’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
7 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

47.
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47.

48.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—BLLFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 (continued)
The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary. HKAS 1 (Revised) will
prohibit the presentation of items of income and expenses
(‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes
in equity, requiring 'non-owner changes in equity’ to be
presented separately from owner changes in equity. All non-
owner changes in equity will be required to be shown in a
performance statement, but entities can choose whether
to present one performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the consolidated
income statement and statement of comprehensive income).
The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2008 are as follows:

47.

48.

EEAEREE-ZTENF+-A=1+—
RIEFEERERZER HEAARRE
AMREEZXE (BE)

RNBBM B REERE3 (BIER]) AT
EAREEHWBERRR _TTNFLA—H
Ko BRZEHAHIETEIE - BAGHER
227 (REF HEFERNKRERNE AR
ZRDEH 2 RFEIE - FA SR ERIF IR
(RET) BELERNERESHRAZIIWA R
XRB ([FEBEANERES])  BR[FESR
ANEREY | HBEREARREHOREN -
BERAEREHHARRBRAIITR
AAAEERB 2 —EXRREER (FEKE
R)EIMERR GFARaEREEERER)
BB RMEMITIE BT ER - BT
ARBHASE  XENPBHRARETIGEL
ERFE-

B 2 )2 BB
ARAR-TENE+=A=+—B2EEH
BRATEET -

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
FEEBR ERITRE
=L BR 3L, ek fif it B 3 h EMEARE FsBERER
REXCAPITAL Financial British Virgin Investment holding 197,400,856 ordinary 100%
Group Limited Islands in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
RBRZHE REBETREER 197,400,856/ °
BREAET ERKR
REXCAPITAL Financial Hong Kong Investment holding 25,000,000 ordinary 100%
Investment Limited B in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
WEEHMEEFRAA REBETIREER 25,000,000f% -
SREEIBTZEBR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HmRMBE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZZTN\F+_A=+—HLFE

48.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

48.

BB~ E 2 RS ()

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s 1= BA R A E

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
FEEBR ERITRE,
=L BRI s i B EE 3R EfMERFEE FEBERER
REXCAPITAL Asset Hong Kong Investment holding, 5,000,000 ordinary 100%
Management Limited BHE provision of shares of HK$1 each
HEEEEREFRAT advisory and fund 5,000,000f%
management BREEVET2 L ER
services in
Hong Kong
NEBETREER -
hRAt R K
EoTERY
REXCAPITAL Finance Hong Kong Money lending and 2,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited B investment trading shares of HK$1 each
HEEEERAA in Hong Kong 2,000,000/% -
RNEBETER BREEVETZ TBR
RREEE
REXCAPITAL Securities Hong Kong Securities dealing 150,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited BE and margin shares of HK$1 each
HRESFBRAF] financing in 150,000,000/% + FREE
Hong Kong BT TR
REBETEREE
RfEmRE
HRFEEERE (BH) PRC Investment holding HK$230,000,000 100%
BRAR] R in the PRC 230,000,000/ 7T
R BEEITREER
Shenzhen Sinodata PRC Provision of RMB35,560,000 84.75%
Technology Co Ltd H lottery machines AR #35,560,0007T
YT BRI AR AT and software
system in the PRC
R EREYE#
SENEES
R B R BB R B IR PRC Provision of RMB2,000,000 84.75%
BRAE H maintenance AR #2,000,0007T

service for
lottery machines
in the PRC

PR BAR (R SR A
KB IR TS
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REXLot Holdings Limited #% s AR A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RMBE(R)

48. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

48.

BB~ E 2 RS ()

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZTN\F+_A=+—HBLLFE

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
FTEEBR ERITRE,
=L BRI s i B EE 3R EfMERFEE FEBERER
Shenzhen Kingsail Software PRC Production of RMB20,000,000 84%
Tech Co Ltd FE lottery machines AR#20,000,0007T
RIYITH & WA BT in the PRC
BRAA REBEEYZH
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd a3 in the PRC AE#30,000,0007T
RN EHRRERE R BEETREER
BRAF]
Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery PRC Investment holding RMB 10,000,000 100%
Technology Co Ltd H in the PRC AR #10,000,0007T
ERERPERER R BEETTIREZEK
BRAF
Guangzhou Latech PRC Production of RMB10,000,000 90%
Technology Co Ltd HE lottery machines AR #10,000,0007T
M T R4S R in the PRC
BRAA P B A E R R
Beijing Lohowin Marketing PRC Lottery distribution RMB1,280,000 60%
Co Ltd e and marketing AR #1,280,0007T

bR M B 2 SRR
BRAA

business in the PRC
AR BT Rk 8

<

S ER

EMBRARRNAFEFEB RFERNEMAEREILS
BEMREEZEEEAR -

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

ERINTFEERRIBYERFEEERBK
AEBEEFEXENNHZARTMNBRF -
EERR REEMHBRARZFBEEERE
BRI °

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion
of the Directors result in particulars of excessive length.
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Five Year Financial Summary

LIFMBERE

The following is a summary of the results of the Group for the five
years ended 31 December 2008, which have been prepared on the

REXLot Holdings Limited #% s = BA R A E

B B - £ Ty R IREI T M M E2 R

basis set out in note 2 to the financial statements. ZEEEE o
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
BZE+-B=1t—BHLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE —ZTTLF —ETRF —ETRHF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=) (&E5)) (L&) (L&)
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(K13%) (K73t) (K7at) (H1at)
Turnover = 1,173,000 412,661 144,746 41,588 77,192
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRHi AT,/ (E5E) 342,215 220,010 41,633 (53,952) (81,820)
Taxation | (51,414) (26,369) (11,001) 3,252 4,146
Profit/(loss) before Rt RER A
minority interests wmA (E58) 290,801 193,641 30,632 (50,700) (77,674)
Minority interests LEREE R (23,160) (56,953) (19,462) - -
267,641 136,688 11,170 (50,700) (77,674)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
BR+=-HA=+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE C—TTF CZZTERF TTHF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEIT FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 3,348,203 2,605,574 1,146,197 349,517 447,394
Total liabilities FEN=R (287,648) (164,171) (216,153) (234,945) (289,162)
Total equity B 3,060,555 2,441,403 930,044 114,572 158,232
Note: Hiat -

As a result of the change in accounting policy for turnover in 2008, the figures

for 2007 to 2004 have been restated for comparison purpose.

HRE-—TEN\FEXEBLERIGHRE B =-F
ELEE - RENEFEZHFOLEIAELR -
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